Board of Trustees

Monday, June 24, 2024 at 2:30 PM EDT to Monday, June 24, 2024 at 4:00 PM EDT
UCF UCF Student Union, Pegasus Ballroom

Virtual Link: https://www.youtube.com/live/OK3Gqgy2C5I?feature=shared

( June 24, 2024 | Budget and Finance Committee
&

Agenda

Agenda
I. Opening Actions 2:30 PM

A. Call to Order and Welcome
Presenter: Bill Christy, Chair, Budget and Finance Committee

B. Roll Call

Presenter: Carmen Jarquin, Director, Governance Operations
Il. Minutes from the February 22, 2024, meeting 2:35 PM
Presenter: Chair Christy
lll. Action 2:40 PM

A. BUDC-1: Preliminary 2024-2025 University Operating Budget and Spending Authority
Presenter: Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance, Kim Banks, Senior Assistant
Vice President for Budget Planning and Analysis

B. BUDC-2: 2024-2025 Proposed Direct Support Organizations and Related Entity
Operating Budgets

Presenters: Gerald Hector, Christy Tant, Assistant Vice President for DSO Accounting and Reporting

C. BUDC-3: Renewal of Reducing Revolving Line of Credit — Fifth Third Bank

Presenters: Gerald Hector, Terry Donovan, Deputy Athletics Director, Administration & Engagement and UCF
Athletics Association Chief Financial Officer

D. BUDC-4: UCF Stadium Corporation Release of Unrestricted Surplus
Presenters: Gerald Hector, Terry Donovan
E. BUDC-5: UCF Pouring Rights with Coca-Cola — Contract Extension Approval

Presenters: Gerald Hector, Jon Varnell, Vice President for Administrative Operations, Kevin Sowers, Assistant
Vice President for Auxiliary Services

IV. Information 3:50 PM

A. INFO-1: University Investment Report — 3rd Quarter, Ended March 31, 2024
Presenters: Gerald Hector, Bert Francis, Assistant Vice President for Debt Management and University
Treasurer

B. INFO-2: Final University Audited Financial Statements

Presenters: Gerald Hector, Danta White, Senior Assistant Vice President for Financial Affairs and University
Controller

C. INFO-3: UCF Athletics Association Memorandum of Understanding Release
Presenters: Gerald Hector, Terry Mohajir, Vice President and Athletics Director


https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Flive%2FOK3Gqgy2C5I%3Ffeature%3Dshared&data=05%7C02%7CCarmen.Jarquin%40ucf.edu%7C1bf33aaa4e594851ad8d08dc8f9914b7%7Cbb932f15ef3842ba91fcf3c59d5dd1f1%7C0%7C0%7C638543134852857123%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=LZ2uooVsXQuxjAvi3nEh26cl6Wxha%2BLKyS6lfA%2BeiJ8%3D&reserved=0

V. New Business 3:55 PM
Presenter: Chair Christy

VI. Adjournment 4:00 PM
Presenter: Chair Christy



&

UCF

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA

Board of Trustees Meeting
Budget and Finance Committee
February 22, 2024
UCF Rosen College of Hospitality Management, Disney Dining Room

MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER

Trustee Harold Mills, chair of the Budget and Finance Committee, called the meeting to
order at 12:20 p.m.

In addition to Chair Mills, committee members present included Vice Chair Jeff Condello,
and Trustees Tiffany Altizer, Rick Cardenas, and Bill Christy. Trustee Michael Okaty
attended virtually.

Other trustees in attendance included Board Chair Alex Martins, Joseph Conte, Danny
Gaekwad, Brandon Greenaway, Stephen King, and Caryl McAlpin.

MINUTES

The minutes of the November 16, 2023, Budget and Finance Committee meeting were
approved as submitted.

ACTION

At Chair Mills’ request, Youndy Cook, Vice President and General Counsel, confirmed
there were no disclosures of conflict of interest from the trustees.

BUDC — 1 Operating Budget for Housing Auxiliary with Bonded Debt

Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance and Bert Francis,
Assistant Vice President for Debt Management and University Treasurer presented the
2024-2025 operating budget for the Housing Auxiliary Facility for approval. Trustee
Christy made a motion to recommend approval of the housing operating budget. Trustee
Altizer seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved.

DISCUSSION

Page 1 of 3



DISC -1 Draft University Audited Financial Statements Report

Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance and Danta White, Senior
Assistant Vice President for Financial Affairs and University Controller presented the draft
audited financial statements report for discussion.

DISC -2 Internal Bank

Hector facilitated a generative discussion with the committee on the establishment of an
internal bank at the university for the purposes of making short-term loans to projects as
bridge funding vehicles to keep projects on schedule.

DISC -3 SPIA Balances and Short-Term Investments

Hector and Francis led the committee in a discussion on the university’s cash
management protocols which will allow the university to move funds from the Special
Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) to the BNY Mellon account to garner additional
passive income.

INFORMATION

Two information items were included in the committee’s meeting materials: 1) University
Investment Report — 2"¢ Quarter, Ended December 31, 2023, and 2) 2023-2024 Fixed
Capital Outlay Budget Update as of December 31, 2023.

NEW BUSINESS

The committee had no new business to discuss.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Mills adjourned the Budget and Finance Committee meeting at 1:14 p.m.

Reviewed by:

Alex Martins Date
Chair, UCF Board of Trustees

Respectfully submitted:

Page 2 of 3



Michael A. Kilbride Date
Associate Corporate Secretary

Page 3 of 3



Board of Trustees

Budget and Finance Committee

June 24, 2024

Agenda Item
BUDC-1: Preliminary 2024-2025 University Operating Budget and Spending Authority

Proposed Board Action

The Budget and Finance Committee is asked to recommend to the Board of Trustees, on its
non-consent agenda, approval of the proposed 2024-2025 University operating budget and
spending authority.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action

BOG Regulation 9.007 State University Operating Budgets and Requests

Supporting Documentation Included

Attachment A: 2024-2025 University of Central Florida Spending Authority

Facilitators/Presenters

Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance
Kim Banks, Senior Assistant Vice President for Budget Planning and Analysis

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



( 2024-2025 Preliminary University Operating
gﬁ Budget and Spend Authority

UCF EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Objective

The Budget and Finance Committee is being asked to review and recommend approval of the
proposed 2024-2025 University Operating Budget and Spend Authority.

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

Below are the key components of FY2025 operating budget document that should be understood
as the schedule and the corresponding notes are reviewed:

1. The proposed FY2025 operating budget was prepared using the Responsibility Center
Management methodology and highlights the “Profit and Loss” statements for each college
and unit at the university. Those statements are in the appendix to this narrative.

2. The Board of Governors (BOG) spending authority is presented by the various colors of
money by which the university must operate for the FY2025 fiscal year. The document must
be approved by vote from the Board of Trustees before being sent to the Board of
Governors before June 30, 2024. The university is then bound by the limits outlined in the
document, which can only be changed by the university’s Board of Trustees.

3. The operating budget and the spending authority have differences that must be understood
as the budget packet is reviewed. The major differences are as follows:

a. At the request of the Board of Trustees, the operating budget includes all the Direct
Support Organizations. The spending authority does not. Therefore, the operating
budget total is higher than the spending authority that the Board of Trustees must
take formal action.

b. The operating budget reports totals gross of budgeted and mandated waivers. The
spending authority is produced based on numbers net of budgeted and mandated
waivers.

c. Approximately $92 million in “Generation/(Utilization) of Fund Balances” is
budgeted on this line and spans all colors of money for potential use of reserve
balances to address unexpected changes during the year. This is down from $126
million in the prior year as the administration now has more sophisticated tools to
monitor the finances of the university more holistically.

4. As of the preparation of the operating budget, the university is yet to get final totals of what

our performance-based and faculty recruitment and retention funding will be. They are listed
as “To Be Determined” (TBD) in the footnotes. We anticipate that those totals will be

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



additions versus subtractions from the amounts presented in the documents. The Board of
Governors will vote on those totals at its upcoming June meeting.

5. In the current year, we utilized approximately $35 million of auxiliary and other fund
balances to balance the budget. For FY2025, we anticipate that a budgeted total of $4
million will fall into this category. This need is driven by continuing work on our information
technology operations. Now that the administration has more sophisticated tools in both
Workday and Adaptive Planning, we anticipate that this amount will be covered.

Some key points that should be understood as the budget is reviewed are the following
pressures that remain in terms of short and medium term decisions continuing from the current
year for the foreseeable future.

1. Funding multiyear faculty start up commitments to attract world class faculty to the
university.

2. Maintenance of buildings inside a formal maintenance program that includes (i) routine,
(i) preventative, (iii) deferred efforts to keep our buildings in top shape.

3. Information technology upgrades and other system refreshes that are necessary for an
aging infrastructure.

4. Finding alternate revenues as tuition and fees have remained flat for the past twelve
years. This point underscores our desire to become a preeminent institution in the SUS to
make up for this reality. We have been getting excellent state support, but in many
instances, they are restricted as to purpose.

5. The reimagination of space usage on campus, and how we can monetize dormant or
underutilized spaces.

Additional Background

The administration has been focused on how best to match the operating budget (by color
of money) to our annual cash flows. There is a need to examine the opportunity costs of not
maximizing the intersection of the two to drive investments and operational performance.
The question that needs to be answered is: “Is UCF maximizing its cash positions to drive
transformational change”? We are adopting an Asset and Liability Matching (ALM) for cash
management purposes that will impact how we budget and manage cash flows for FY2025
and beyond. The RCM model was adopted to provide the transparency necessary to
understand the programmatic and administrative costs of each college and unit. To that end,
the administration is attempting to capitalize on the changes made to our short-term cash
management to impact the timing and needs for all twelve months of the fiscal year.

Attachment A is the current spending authority schedule that the Board of Trustees has
been approving for several years. This format remains the same for the FY2025 budget
submission. It has a formal request from the BOT for $2.3 billion in spending authority. The
budget will be balanced to this total.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



Rationale

It is important to note that the attached budget schedule should be read in conjunction with the
associated narratives to get a clear picture of all the variables and assumptions made in the
budget.

Implementation Plan

Per Board of Governors regulation 9.007 (State University Operating Budgets and
Requests), each university board of trustees shall adopt an operating budget for the general
operation of the university as prescribed by the regulations of the Board of Governors. The
university board of trustees-ratified operating budget must be presented to the Board of
Governors for approval by a date established by the Chancellor.

Resource Considerations

Source of funding for the operations of the university and some of its Direct Support
Organizations that are directly related to it.

Conclusion

Staff recommends approval of the 2024-2025 Preliminary University Operating Budget and Spend
Authority. Without the BOT’s approval, the university’s ability to submit a Board of Trustees
approved budget to the Board of Governors will be missed, and our operations to commence
spending on July 1, 2024 will also be impacted.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 3



Attachment A

University of Central Florida

Preliminary Spending Authority
Fiscal Year 2024-25

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 Increase/ %
Spending Authority Spending Authority (Decrease) Change

E&G Main $ 727,285,128 $ 753,682,952 $ 26,397,824 3.6%
E&G College of Medicine 48,630,720 48,630,715 (5) 0.0%
E&G Florida Center for Students with Unique Abilities 8,984,565 12,484,565 3,500,000 39.0%
E&G Community Schools Program 11,000,000 20,116,736 9,116,736 82.9%
Contracts and Grants 265,616,148 279,832,264 14,216,116 5.4%
Auxiliaries 392,383,971 437,097,628 44,713,657 11.4%
Local Funds -
Student Activities 29,740,532 32,049,806 2,309,274 7.8%
Student Financial Aid 552,356,512 550,837,904 (1,518,608) -0.3%
Concessions 800,000 800,000 - 0.0%
Intercollegiate Athletics 80,480,046 80,588,652 108,606 0.1%
Technology Fee 18,910,326 12,329,688 (6,580,638) -34.8%
Self-Insurance Plan 630,183 644,791 14,608 2.3%
Faculty Practice Plan* 12,915,987 50,064,408 37,148,421 287.6%
Total Uses of Resources $ 2,149,734,118 $ 2,279,160,109 $ 129,425,991 6.0%

*Faculty Practice Plan - The $37m increase in spending authority is primarily related to transfers to the College of Medicine
for new expenses for the participation in the Medicaid Supplemental Payment program, as well as facility renovation expenses.




Board of Trustees

Budget and Finance Committee

June 24, 2024

Agenda Item

BUDC-2: 2024-2025 Proposed Direct Support Organizations and Related Entity Operating
Budgets

Proposed Board Action

The Budget and Finance Committee is asked to recommend to the Board of Trustees, on its
non-consent agenda, approval of the proposed 2024-2025 Direct Support Organizations
and Related Entity Operating Budgets.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action

Delegation of Authority to the President, Miscellaneous Powers and Duties, 6(c) Recommend
for Board of Trustees’ approval annual operating and capital budgets for Affiliated
Organizations.

Supporting Documentation Included

Attachment A: UCF Academic Health, Inc.

Attachment B: UCF Athletics Association, Inc.

Attachment C: UCF Convocation Corporation

Attachment D: UCF Finance Corporation

Attachment E: UCF Foundation, Inc.

Attachment F: UCF Research Foundation, Inc.

Attachment G: UCF Stadium Corporation

Attachment H: Central Florda Clinical Practice Organization, Inc.

Facilitators/Presenters

Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance
Christy Tant, Assistant Vice President for DSO Accounting and Reporting

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



: 2024-2025 Proposed Direct Support
&Q, Organizations and Related Entity Operating
~ Budgets

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

UCF

Objective

The Budget and Finance Committee is being asked to review and recommend approval of the
proposed 2024-2025 Direct Support Organizations and Related Entity Operating Budgets.

Summary of Key Discussion Topics and Questions

All of the university’s DSOs are planning to break even or generate a small surplus next fiscal
year, except for UCF Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization and UCF Academic Health.
Those two organizations are planning to draw from their operating cash reserves while maintaining
a projected balance of at least $1 million at the end of FY2024-2025.

The proposed budgets attached to this agenda item include narratives with important details. The
more significant items are highlighted below.

e The UCF Board of Trustees approved the Stadium Tower Expansion Project and related
financing plan including the issuance of $88.6 million of new debt on March 25, 2024. The
proposed budget for UCF Stadium Corporation (UCFSC) reflects the first estimated $10
million annual allocation of Tourist Development Tax revenues recently awarded from
Orange County, $1.5 million of debt service costs related to the issuance of new debt, and
the funding of a $10 million debt issuance reserve.

e The proposed budget for UCF Athletics Association (UCFAA) reflects UCF’s second year
in the Big 12 Conference. This budget includes a $2.2 million increase in compensation
expense for post-season performance bonuses, contract escalators for coaches, and the
impact of changes in the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) minimum exempt salary levels.
It also includes a $1.5 million decrease in the distributions received from UCFSC resulting
from the plan to issue new debt to fund the Stadium Tower Expansion project. This will be
offset by a $2.2 million decrease in debt service costs, primarily due to a reduction in the
scheduled American Athletic Conference (AAC) exit fee payment. To further balance the
budget, UCFAA'’s third consecutive annual contribution to its operating reserve has been
reduced from $2.5 million to $0.1 million. However, it plans to maintain $5.3 million in
operating cash reserves through next fiscal year and resume annual contributions of $2.5
million in FY2025-2026 until $10.0 million is accumulated. Additionally, distributions
received from UCFSC have the potential to exceed the amount conservatively budgeted
based on the proforma financials that were used to plan for the new debt issuance. Itis also
worth noting that UCFAA’s budget satisfies the travel, equipment, and recruitment needs of
its sport teams but does not represent all of the funding requested by them. The lack of
revenue to fully fund operational aspirations will require budget discipline by cost center
managers.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



e UCF Convocation Corporation (UCFCC) is planning to use two consecutive years of
housing rate increases to invest in deferred maintenance reserves for the four student
residence halls (Towers Knights Plaza), convocation center (Addition Financial Arena and
The Venue), surrounding retail space (Knights Plaza), and adjacent parking that it operates.
Planned increases totaling $1.3 million will bring total Repair and Replacement (R&R)
contributions to $2.4 million next fiscal year. A 10-year Facilities Condition Assessment
(FCA) study performed during FY2022-2023 indicated that the corporation’s annual
contributions to its capital reserves should average $4.5 million annually. Historical
contributions and expenditures have been significantly less than indicated by the FCA
study. UCFCC'’s ability to generate revenues from other sources and invest at this level is
limited. Management will need to continue to manage costs and evaluate the criticality of
repairs to infrastructure and execute deferred maintenance plans as funds are available.

e UCF Foundation (UCFF) is planning for a $6.0 million increase, including a draw from
reserves, of Capital Projects Finance Authority (CAPFA) Funding which is revenue
generated from a land lease agreement with a student housing project, Knights Circle. This
will fund increases in personnel costs reflecting the full impact of 40 staff members including
development officers, engagement officers, and donor relations staff who were onboarded
during FY2023-2024; eight new positions to further enhance donor events and experiences,
alumni engagement and leadership annual giving, and communications; and other
inflationary cost increases.

e UCF Research Foundation (UCFRFD) is projecting a $2.2 million, or 10%, increase in
both revenue and spending on contracts and grants. This will also generate $1.0 million of
additional indirect revenues to fund the full impact of positions that were added late in
FY2023-2024.

e UCF Central Florida Clinical Practice Organization (CFCPO) is anticipating significant
growth in both patient care and non-operating revenue totaling $6.0 million as a result of
expanding its operations through partnerships and the recruitment of four new faculty
physicians. These new revenue streams will fund recurring personnel cost increases and
increased payments to the Medicaid Supplemental Payment program. This plan is
supplemented with approximately $14.6 million of cash reserves to fund one-time
investments including start-up costs for four new faculty, the renovation of space at Lake
Nona Cancer Center and UCF Health, student scholarships, and other research and
educational initiatives of the College of Medicine.

Additional Background

Refer to the narratives included with the attached proposed budgets for a description of the
respective DSO'’s operations and significant related party transactions.

Rationale

This report is intended to support the board’s assessment and approval of the organizations’
financial plans for the next fiscal year.

Implementation Plan

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



The proposed budgets were previously approved by the respective DSO boards of directors prior
to being presented to the university board of trustees for approval.

Resource Considerations

Refer to the narratives included with the attached proposed budgets for a description of the
respective DSQO’s financial resources and debt holdings.

Conclusion

Staff recommends approval of the 2024-2025 Proposed Direct Support Organization and Related
Entity Operating Budgets.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 3



Attachment A

UCF ACADEMIC HEALTH, INC.
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

2024-25 2023-24 2023-24 YOY
PROPOSED APPROVED PROJECTED Fav (Unfav)

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUALS Variance
Funding Sources $ $ $ $
Commercial Lease Revenue' 3,005,108 2,612,552 3,145,595 (140,487)
Total Funding Sources 3,005,108 2,612,552 3,145,595 (140,487)
Funding Uses
Professional Services? 38,381 36,600 29,760 (8,621)
Facility Expense3 2,616,016 2,548,492 2,591,897 (24,119)
Information Technology 2,500 2,500 2,630 130
Other Expense4 327,755 24,960 465,410 137,655
Total Funding Uses 2,984,652 2,612,552 3,089,697 105,045
Sources Less Uses 20,456 - 55,898 (35,442)

' UCF Academic Health, Inc (UCFAH) receives sub-lease revenue from lease arrangements with clinical partners in the UCF
Lake Nona Cancer Center. Each lease contains a 3% annual rent & CAM escalation clause. Lease revenue for fiscal year
2025 is budgeted to be lower than fiscal year 2024 projection due to the expected termination of two short-term leases. The
decrease in lease revenue is partially offset by added ad valorem taxes for 2023 paid by clinical tenants.

% The Professional Services budget includes financial audit and legal fees. The increase is the result of higher audit fees for

the new fiscal year 2025 agreement.

3 Facility Expense reflects rent plus CAM paid to UCF for the sub-lease of space at the Lake Nona Cancer Center.

* UCFAH's clinical tenants may be subject to ad valorem taxes by Orange County beginning January 1, 2023. Orange County
is still completing their assessment. In anticipation of receiving this assessment, UCFAH has accrued twelve months of ad
valorem taxes for fiscal year 2024 and six months for fiscal year 2023. Ad valorem taxes are billable to the clinical partners.

The budget for fiscal year 2025 includes ad valorem taxes.



@, UCF Academic Health, Inc. (UCFAH)
A
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

e The proposed budget reflects lease revenue from current clinical lease arrangements. Each
lease includes a 3% annual escalation for both base rent and CAM. Two short-term leases are
set to expire in the fall partially offsetting the increases in the remaining leases.

e UCFAH is evaluating if space occupied by the private clinical partners may be subject to ad
valorem taxes by Orange County beginning January 1, 2023. In anticipation of receiving this
assessment, UCFAH has accrued twelve months of ad valorem taxes for fiscal year 2024 and
six months of fiscal year 2023. This expense is billable to the private partners as specified in
the leases. The budget for fiscal year 2025 is lower than the current year forecast since it
includes only twelve months of ad valorem taxes for both lease revenue and other expenses.

e The remaining budget includes rent and Common Area Maintenance (CAM) payable to UCF
and UCFAH operations expense. The UCFAH operating expense budget covers consulting,
the annual financial audit, and software expense, as well as officer and general liability
insurance.

Additional Background

UCFAH supports medical education, research, and patient care through the planning and
development of clinical initiatives and affiliated partnerships that serve the educational, research,
and clinical mission of the College of Medicine. Currently, UCFAH is engaged in two main
activities. One is a joint venture with Hospital Corporation of America (HCA) (Central Florida Health
Services, LLC or CFHS) which includes shared governance and 20% equity ownership in the
development and operation of UCF Lake Nona Hospital (UCF LNH). UCF LNH has been
developed to serve as a teaching hospital. The second major activity of UCFAH is the development
and oversight of lease arrangements with clinical partners in the UCF Lake Nona Cancer Center
(UCF LNCC). This includes lease administration and collection of rental income for UCFAH’s
designated space in the UCF LNCC. UCFAH was established in 2016. In July 2019, it began
leasing space to outside tenants in the UCF LNCC.

Resource Considerations

The projected cash reserves at the end of FY2023-2024 is $1.1 million. These cash reserves
along with the revenue from long-term lease arrangements are more than sufficient to meet
all obligations. With annual escalations built into the current leases, annual lease revenue
alone will begin to meet those obligations in FY2024-2025. Cash reserves are not expected
to decrease below $1 million.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



Attachment B

UCF ATHLETICS ASSOCIATION
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

Funding Sources

Student athletic fees

Ticket sales and ticket related transactions
Philanthropic donations for operations
Game guarantees received

Sponsorships

Philanthropic donations for capital projects
NCAA/ conference distributions

Other athletic revenues

Scholarship support from university
Revenue received from Stadium Corp transfer
Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses

Scholarships

Employee compensation

Sport operations

Support operations

Game guarantee expense

Non-recurring operations

Guaranteed royalty and rent to Stadium Corp
Capital transfer to university

Retained Earnings for Liquidity (Reserve)
Total Funding Uses

Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)
Interest earnings

Debt service

Total Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)

Sources Less Uses

2024-25

PROPOSED

BUDGET

$
23,488,923

16,270,825
4,404,055
1,013,000

12,616,667
1,820,209

20,291,489
2,372,900

11,463,000
3,061,611

96,802,678

12,147,766
37,403,496
13,894,000
20,053,720
1,950,000
1,500,000
4,121,000
1,820,209
100,000
92,990,191

(3,773,717)
(3,773,717)

38,770

2023-24

APPROVED

BUDGET

$
22,913,747

14,708,082
3,550,000
276,670
12,286,667
2,379,550
20,818,337
1,822,139
9,463,000
4,221,050
92,439,242

11,500,948
35,688,697
9,862,269
15,793,537
1,935,000
2,433,000
4,121,000
2,500,000
83,834,451

(8,379,859)
(8,379,859)

224,932

2023-24

PROJECTED
ACTUALS

$
23,208,598

16,239,351
5,338,610
280,270
12,408,880
1,248,306
19,950,319
2,975,222
11,463,000
4,513,975
97,626,531

12,075,995
35,224,744
13,840,876
19,216,341
2,057,056
1,900,000
4,096,000
660,000
2,500,000
91,571,012

240,600
(5,992,561)
(5,751,961)

303,558

YOY

Fav (Unfav)

Variance

$
280,325

31,474
(934,555)
732,730
207,787
571,902
341,170
(602,322)
(1,452,364)
(823,853)

(71,771)
(2,178,753)
(53,124)
(837,379)
107,056
400,000
(25,000)
(1,160,209)
2,400,000
(1,419,179)

(240,600)
2,218,844
1,978,244

(264,787)

! Ticket sales and ticket related transactions revenue excludes $2.8 million of premium seating revenues recorded only on Stadium Corp's
financials. Net revenue received from Stadium Corp Transfer is comprised of the following:

Ticket Sales transferred to Stadium Corporation
Excess revenues returned to the Association

Net transfers in (out)

Debt Service Summary

Fifth Third - Line of Credit

Regions - Construction Note (Roth Athletic Center)

UCF Foundation - Line of Credit
UCF - Loan

AAC Exit Fee Payable

Total

(4,947,784)
8,009,395

3,061,611

Annual Debt Service Fiscal Year 2025

Outstanding Principal

Principal Interest Total As of 6/30/24 As of 6/30/25
345,000 225,500 570,500 4,125,000 3,780,000
1,155,000 11,550 1,166,550 1,155,000 -

- 270,000 270,000 9,000,000 9,000,000

1,041,650 58,350 1,100,000 3,652,537 2,510,887
666,667 - 666,667 8,000,000 7,333,333
3,208,317 565,400 3,773,717 25,832,537 22,624,220




(E  UCF Athletics Association, Inc. (UCFAA)
A
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations
The proposed budget reflects UCF’s second year in the Big 12 Conference.
Funding sources assumptions include:

o Ticket sales and ticket-related transactions are budgeted to match the current year’s projected
actuals. Football season ticket renewals match last year’'s pace, a year in which sales were at
an all-time high. The 2024 football season includes one additional home game which has a
marginal impact on the overall budget since the maximum number of season tickets have
already been sold. Men’s basketball ticket revenue is budgeted slightly less than the current
year’s actuals with the same number of home games as the first year due to a favorable home
schedule during UCF’s first year in the Big 12 conference coupled with uncertainty of
opponents in the second year. There is a risk of team performance impacting revenues when
budgeting for maximum capacity.

¢ Philanthropic donations for operations include the addition of parking related transactions
matching the current year’s projected actuals. There is a balance between donations needed
for operations and donations for Name, Image, Likeness (NIL)/Kingdom.

e Game guarantees received reflects contracted agreements primarily for football with the road
game at the University of Florida as the primary revenue driver.

e Conference distributions are slightly lower than FY2023-2024 due to the one-time deposit
return of $2.5 million partially offset by the base allocation increasing from $18 million to $19
million.

e Other athletics’ revenues are budgeted less than the current year projected actuals due to the
uncertainty of hosting some special events. For example, UCFAA does not anticipate hosting
the Cure Bowl and has not budgeted for the associated revenue in FY2024-2025.

e The revenue received from the Stadium Corporation matches the Stadium Corporation
proforma submitted for approval of the new debt issuance. This has the potential to exceed
budget, but consistency in these materials was maintained.

Funding uses assumptions include:

e Scholarships are budgeted to exceed funding sources. The increase in housing rates is the
primary escalator.

e Employee compensation is projected to be under budget in the current year primarily due to
the lack of earned bonus compensation for sports. The proposed budget includes built-in
contract escalators for coaches as well as an increase in the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)
minimum exempt salary to $44,000. This budget does not include resources for the January 1,

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



2025, rate change to $58,656. It is anticipated this second escalator will be legally challenged
but if upheld, midyear budget cuts may be necessary as well as a reclassification of many
existing employees. The financial impact of this change has already been calculated and a
recommendation to executive leadership for position-by-position designation changes has
been developed.

e The proposed budget for sport operations meets the travel, equipment, and recruiting needs of
the sport teams but does not represent all of the funding requested. The lack of revenue to fully
fund operational aspirations restricts this category. Disciplined budget adherence will be
necessary as well as cost center managers scrutinizing the expenses they authorize.

e Capital transfers to the university represents an estimate of the amount of philanthropic
donations for capital projects that will be transferred to fund university capital projects and is
primarily related to the football campus project. This is simply an estimate with a wide range of
variability possible. Both sources and uses move in the same direction on these transactions.

e UCFAA contributed $2.5 million plus interest to operating reserve accounts in each of the last
two fiscal years. Currently, there is a cash balance of approximately $5.26 million being held.
A contribution of $100,000 is anticipated in FY2024-2025, but annual contributions of $2.5
million are anticipated to resume in FY2025-2026.

e Principal and interest represent scheduled debt service payments. The Roth Athletics Center
final payment will occur in September 2024 concluding this debt. Continued payments on the
Fifth Third Line of Credit, the UCF Loan, and American Athletics Conference exit fees are
budgeted.

The landscape of the National Collegiate Athletics Association (NCAA) Division | athletics business
model is in constant flux unlike any other time in the history of the industry. New litigation and
legislation are introduced on a seemingly weekly basis that have significant impacts on the
UCFAA financial model. The proposed FY2024-2025 budget does not include provisions for
revenue sharing, student-athletes as employees, unlimited scholarship funding for all students
on a roster, extreme changes in current NIL parameters, etc. All Big 12 correspondence on
these topics remain philosophical at the Director of Athletics level only but early indications
expect a significant impact in FY2025-2026.

UCFAA is favorably positioned to face these challenges as the organization transitions to full-share
Big 12 membership. Full share members are receiving $34.8 million in conference distributions
this year as opposed to the $18 million currently received. This additional $16.8 million in FY2025-
2026 is earmarked for increases in operational costs as well as a minimum $10 million placeholder
for revenue share/additional costs associated with the new NCAA model. Financial discipline will
be required to limit controllable decisions of future resources that may need preservation for the
impending transformational changes to the NCAA.

In conclusion, UCFAA's financial position has significantly reversed its course in a short amount
of time. Just over two years ago, the athletics department had no gift money accumulated in the
Foundation, no operating reserve, and insufficient cash on hand to support operations. Today, the
Association has approximately $7.1 million in fundraised dollars in the Foundation, over $5 million

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



in operating reserve accounts, and sufficient cash on hand to process all expenditures in a timely
fashion. The financial health of the department has improved considerably in an uncertain and
evolving NCAA landscape with pressures from NIL and revenue sharing.

Additional Background

UCFAA operates the university’s intercollegiate athletic programs and joined the Big 12
Conference on July 1, 2023. The Association does not fund a repair and replacement reserve, but
its leadership committed to building a $10.0 million operating reserve by retaining $2.5 million of
surplus operating funds for five years beginning in FY2022-2023.

The Association’s debt matures on dates that range from September 2024 to July 2033. This
includes a note payable to the university, line of credit payable to UCF Foundation, and
construction-related debt owed to third parties. In addition, the Association is required to remit
annual exit fee payments to the American Athletic Conference through FY2035-2036.

The Association receives athletic fees assessed to students by the university ($23.5 million) as
well as non-cash support provided by the university to fund athletic scholarships ($11.5 million)
and Title IX compensation and benefits for coaches of women’s sports ($0.9 million). It also
receives an allocation from the university’s exclusive beverage provider contract ($0.6 million) and
licensing fees associated with the sale of apparel and other merchandise from the university’s
bookstore contract ($0.7 million). The Association pays the university an annual overhead fee of
$100,000. Itis closely related with and acts in good faith as “manager” of UCF Stadium Corporation
and for the arena operations of UCF Convocation Corporation.

UCF Stadium Corporation holds debt related to the construction of the university’s football stadium.
Premium seating revenues, concessions and pledged revenue transfers from UCF Athletics
Association are more than sufficient to fund the corporation’s operational expenses, debt service
payments, and repair and replacement reserves. Once the debt service requirements are fulfilled,
any unrestricted excess revenues are transferred back to UCF Athletics Association who depends
on the receipt of these funds to maintain its operations.

The UCF Board of Trustees approved the Stadium Tower Expansion Project and related financing
plan including the issuance of $88.6 million of new debt on March 25, 2024.

Pledged revenue transfers to UCF Stadium Corporation include football ticket sales, stadium rent
($2.1 million), and guaranteed royalty payments ($2.0 million). The Association also pays
guaranteed royalty payments ($1.0 million) and arena overhead ($0.5 million) to UCF Convocation
Corporation.

Resource Considerations

Approximately $7.1 million was held by UCF Foundation on behalf of UCF Athletics Association
as of March 31, 2024. That balance is expected to drop significantly due to year-end budget
balancing.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 3



The Association has $5.0 million plus interest in operating reserve accounts. It is important to note
that the reserve may be utilized if the trend of operational expenditures exceeding sources
continues.

The outstanding debt balance will decrease from $25.8 million for the year ending June 30, 2024,
to $22.6 million for the year ending June 30, 2025, without additional modifications.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 4



Housing Operations
Funding Sources
Apartment Rental
Miscellaneous Rental Fees and Revenue
Parking Revenue
Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses
Housing Operating Expenses
Housing Maintenance and Custodial
Housing Utilities
Total Funding Uses

Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)
Interest Earnings
Housing Debt Service
Housing R&R Reserve Contributions
Parking R&R Reserve Contributions
Total Non-Operating Revenue/Expenses

Housing Operations - Sources Less Uses

Retail Operations

Funding Sources
Total Operating Revenues

Funding Uses
Retail Operating Expenses
Retail Utilities
Total Funding Uses

Retail Operations - Sources Less Uses

Arena Operations
Funding Sources

Arena Event Revenue

Arena Priority Use - University

Coke Sponsorship - University
Arena Rent - UCFAA

Guaranteed Royalty - UCFAA

Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses
Arena Event Expenses
Arena Maintenance and Custodial
Arena Utilities
Total Funding Uses

Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)
Transfers to UCF

Interest Earnings

Arena Debt Service

Arena R&R Reserve Contributions

Total Non-Operating Revenue/Expenses

Arena Operations - Sources Less Uses

Sources Less Uses

Debt Service Summary

Housing debt service
Arena debt service
Total

R&R Reserve Summary

Housing
Arena
Parking
Total

Attachment C

UCF CONVOCATION CORPORATION
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

2024-25 2023-24 2023-24 YOY
PROPOSED APPROVED PROJECTED Fav (Unfav)
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUALS Variance
$ $ $ $
19,413,642 18,139,852 18,812,513 601,129
400,000 350,000 433,296 (33,296)
1,036,388 1,036,388 1,036,388 -
20,850,030 19,526,240 20,282,197 567,833
2,171,784 2,069,518 1,910,475 (261,309)
1,896,104 1,871,692 1,968,427 72,323
1,941,909 1,834,031 1,889,196 (52,713)
6,009,797 5,775,241 5,768,098 (169,376)
175,000 165,000 235,149 (60,149)
(7,735,493) (7,728,483) (7,728,483) (7,010)
(700,000) (600,000) (600,000) (100,000)
(250,000) (50,000) (50,000) (200,000)
(8,510,493) (8,213,483) (8,143,334) (367,159)
6,329,740 5,537,516 6,370,765 (41,025)
1,995,835 1,962,899 2,003,856 (8,021)
339,796 317,861 369,396 29,600
251,741 242,574 234,171 (17,570)
591,537 560,435 603,567 12,030
1,404,298 1,402,464 1,400,289 4,009
8,680,204 7,971,017 8,595,304 84,900
2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000 -
125,000 - 125,000 -
535,000 535,000 535,000 -
1,060,904 1,050,000 1,050,000 10,904
12,601,108 11,756,017 12,505,304 95,804
8,910,752 8,313,123 8,255,783 (654,970)
1,359,334 1,325,830 1,054,837 (304,497)
1,609,032 1,398,996 1,553,139 (55,893)
11,879,118 11,037,949 10,863,759 (1,015,359)
- (246,300) (246,300) 246,300
175,000 15,000 257,360 (82,360)
(6,014,438) (6,014,030) (6,014,030) (408)
(1,500,000) (500,000) (500,000) (1,000,000)
(7,339,438) (6,745,330) (6,502,970) (836,468)
(6,617,448) (6,027,262) (4,861,425) (1,756,023)
1,116,591 912,718 2,909,629 (1,793,038)
Annual Debt Service Fiscal Year 2025 Outstanding Principal
Principal Interest Total As of 6/30/24  As of 6/30/25
5,685,000 2,050,493 7,735,493 75,555,000 69,870,000
3,755,000 2,259,438 6,014,438 56,820,000 53,065,000
9,440,000 4,309,930 13,749,930 132,375,000 122,935,000
R&R Reserve Held at Trustee R&R Reserve Available for Use
Projected Ho:asr':i?‘ e Transfers to Projected Projected fm;r?r':zf;r:n d Budgeted Projected
as of 7/01/24 . g Corp. as of 6/30/25 | as of 7/01/24 Expenditures as of 6/30/25
Contributions Arena
2,358,390 700,000 (1,960,000) 1,098,390 1,149,109 1,960,000 (1,960,000) 1,149,109
- - - - 1,330,501 1,500,000 (2,170,000) 660,501
78,673 250,000 - 328,673 330,700 - - 330,700
2,437,063 950,000 (1,960,000) 1,427,063 2,810,310 3,460,000 (4,130,000) 2,140,310




" Balance held in trust remains unavailable until board approves withdrawal.

Operating Reserve Summary

University-managed projects
Arena-managed projects
Unallocated

Total

UCF CONVOCATION CORPORATION

PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

Operating Reserve for Critical Needs
Projected Contributions Budgeted Projected
as of 7/01/24 Expenditures as of 6/30/25
3,648,459 - (3,300,792) 347,667
175,237 - (175,237) -
61,303 - - 61,303
3,884,999 - (3,476,029) 408,970




@, UCF Convocation Corporation (UCFCC)
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

Housing Operations:

Housing operations are projected to generate a surplus of $6.3 million in FY2023-2024.
Historically annual surpluses generated by the Housing and Retail operations fund the Repair and
Replacement (R&R) and debt service obligations for the entire organization. The Arena does not
generate surpluses in its operations; therefore, the surpluses generated in Housing and Retail
operations covers their portion as well. The $0.6 million increase in apartment rental revenues is
due to a 4% rate increase at 98% occupancy for Fall and Spring and 93% occupancy for Summer.
There is a slight decrease in Miscellaneous Rental Fees and Revenues which is factoring once off
rentals for budget purposes.

The $0.3 million increase in housing operating expenses assumes that projected savings in
operating expenses will not reoccur next fiscal year. Increases in R&R contributions are being
funded by FY2023-2024 and FY2024-2025 housing rate increases. Further information about
contributions to the R&R reserves is included in the section below.

Retail Operations:

Retail operations are projected to generate a surplus of $1.4 million in FY2024-2025 which is
materially consistent with the FY2023-2024 budget and projected actuals. Budgeted revenues are
based on the current occupancy rate.

Arena Operations:

Arena operations are projected to generate a deficit of $6.6 million in FY2024-2025. The projected
deficit is higher than the current year’s actuals by approximately $1.7 million or 34.7%. This is less
favorable than the $4.8 million projected deficit for FY2023-2024 primarily due to increases in
arena event expenses ($0.7 million) and maintenance and custodial expenses ($0.3 million), as
well as a significant increase in the R&R contribution ($1.0 million) which is being funded by the
2024 and 2025 housing rate increases. Further information about contributions to the R&R
reserves is included in the section below. The arena’s projected deficit will be funded by the
projected surplus generated from the housing and retail operations.

The immaterial increase in arena event revenue ($0.1 million) relative to the $0.7 million increase
in arena event expenses is primarily due to the projected number and mix of event types. FY2023-
2024 was a record year due to a small number of concerts with a high level of success resulting
from the community’s excitement about the promoter and these types of events in this post-Covid
era. Concerts tend to generate higher concession revenue due to alcohol sales, as well as higher
Ticketmaster rebates and other ancillary revenue. While there is an increased number of events
in the FY2024-2025 budget, the mix of event types is less heavily weighted on concerts. Arena

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



event revenue is expected to remain materially consistent with the current year but includes
increases in ticket and facility rental revenue ($0.7 million) with offsetting decreases in concessions
($0.2 million), Ticketmaster rebates ($0.3 million), and other ancillary revenues ($0.1 million).
Arena event revenues were budgeted using the facilities’ current calendar holds and historical
information as a base. Achieving revenue goals will depend largely on navigating challenges with
availability and continued strength in concert bookings, which account for the majority of event
income (45%) and is also the most volatile area due to external factors. Concessions, ticket fees,
and parking revenues are in line with peer venues and do not provide immediate growth areas.

The $0.7 million unfavorable variance in arena event expenses reflects increases for event
production ($0.7 million) which correlates to the increase in ticket and facility rental revenue noted
above, plus an increase in salaries ($0.1 million) offset by a decrease in management fees ($0.1
million). Rate increases by service providers are anticipated as staff have already been notified by
vendors to continue to expect higher costs. The Florida minimum wage will also increase by $1.00
in September following the schedule that will have it at $15 per hour by 2026. The increase in
salaries is largely being driven by six managers whose salaries will be adjusted to comply with the
updated FLSA exemption rules.

The $0.3 million unfavorable variance in arena maintenance and custodial expenses is primarily
due to non-recurring salary savings ($0.2 million) that occurred in 2024 due to four to five vacant
positions.

The $0.2 million favorable variance in transfers to UCF is resulting from the arena scoreboard
payments being paid in full before next fiscal year.

R&R and Operating Reserves:

Increases in the annual contributions to the R&R reserves are based on the amount of funding
available from operations and the needs and priorities established by management. However,
continued increases are needed in future years to fully fund the annual deferred maintenance
needs of the corporation. The university conducted a Facilities Conditions Assessment for all its
buildings. Deferred maintenance needs were identified for the corporation that amounts to
approximately $4.5 million annually. Considering that funding cannot take place at that level each
year, the increase in the FY2024-2025 budget for deferred maintenance needs were prioritized by
greatest need. The residuals from annual operations are critical for this work to be completed each
year. The budgeted contribution to the housing and parking R&R reserves complies with minimum
funding requirements. Refer to Attachment B for a list of planned projects to be funded from the
R&R reserves in FY2024-2025.

The use of non-recurring operating reserves generated from revenue recovery from the
Department of Education’s Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF) program, and other
capex funds received during FY2022-2023 to fund $11.8 million will continue in FY2024-2025.
These projects were approved by the board in a special meeting held on April 27, 2023. These
funds are managed by the UCF Facilities and UCF Athletic Association teams. Refer to Attachment
C for a list of projects to be funded from this non-recurring operating reserve in FY2024-2025.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



Additional Background

UCFCC operates four student residence halls (Towers Knights Plaza), the convocation center
(Addition Financial Arena and The Venue), surrounding retail space (Knights Plaza), and adjacent
parking. UCFCC'’s operations yield sufficient revenues to fund its operating expenses, debt service
payments, and repair and replacement reserves. The corporation’s original financing model
planned a surplus to be generated by its housing operations to fund both the housing and arena
debt service payments. Revenue increases need to be generated to fund repair and replacement
reserves at levels adequate to maintain the corporation’s facilities long-term.

UCFCC’s debt matures on dates that range from October 2026 to October 2035 with semi-annual
debt service payments due in October and April. It is secured by revenues generated from housing
operations, arena operations, and commercial retail rental income. With each debt refunding the
corporation entered into separate support agreements whereby the university is obligated to the
extent that is has legally available revenues to cover any deficiencies.

UCFCC receives rent from the university for its priority use of the arena ($2.2 million), the
corporation’s managed parking garages ($1.0 million), and retail space ($1.2 million), as well as
an allocation from the university’s exclusive beverage provider contract ($0.1 million). The
corporation pays the university for managed services related to housing and facilities operations
in addition to an annual overhead fee of $100,000. The corporation also receives guaranteed
royalty payments ($1.0 million) and arena overhead ($0.5 million) from UCF Athletics Association.

Resource Considerations

Funding sources less uses are anticipated to be sufficient to fund the corporation’s debt service
obligations and operating costs for the year.

A summary of projected R&R reserves is presented at the bottom of the report.

The outstanding debt balance will decrease from $132.4 million for the year ending June 30, 2024,
to $122.9 million for the year ending June 30, 2025.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 3



Attachment D

UCF FINANCE CORPORATION
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

Funding Sources

Transfers from University
Interest Earnings

Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses

Debt Service
Operating Expenses

Total Funding Uses

Sources Less Uses

Debt Service Summary

Burnett Biomedical Sciences Building Loan
Total

2024-25
PROPOSED
BUDGET

$

3,968,724
45,000

4,013,724

3,988,724
25,000

4,013,724

2023-24
APPROVED
BUDGET

$

4,006,756
5,000

4,011,756

3,988,136
23,620

4,011,756

2023-24
PROJECTED
ACTUALS

$

3,961,756
50,000

4,011,756

3,988,136
23,620

4,011,756

YOY
Fav (Unfav)
Variance

$

6,968
(5,000)

1,968

(588)
(1,380)

(1,968)

Annual Debt Service Fiscal Year 2025

Outstanding Principal

Principal Interest Total As of 6/30/24 As of 6/30/25
2,885,000 1,103,724 3,988,724 47,431,000 44,546,000
2,885,000 1,103,724 3,988,724 47,431,000 44,546,000




@, UCF Finance Corporation (UCFFC)
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

e Transfers from the university represents rent on the Burnett Biomedical Sciences building
pursuant to the 2017 amended and restated operating lease agreement and is based on annual
debt service plus operating expenses less interest income.

¢ Interest earnings are generated from cash balances held in the university’s shared account.
Budget assumes interest rates and the university’s allocation methodology remain materially
consistent with fiscal 2024.

e Principal and interest represent scheduled debt service payments for the Burnett Biomedical
Sciences building construction loan.

e Operating expenses include audit and other administrative fees. Budget assumes 5% increase
in audit fees.

Additional Background

UCFFC holds debt related to the construction of the Burnett Biomedical Sciences building on the
health sciences campus in Lake Nona. The university provides approximately $4.0 million of
annual rent pursuant to the 2017 amended and restated operating lease agreement. This funds
the corporation’s operating expenses and debt service payments for the following fiscal year.

This corporation does not fund an R&R reserve.

UCFFC’s debt matures in July 2037 with semi-annual debt service payments due in July and
January. It is secured by the university’s indirect cost revenues from federal, state, and private
grants.

Resource Considerations

The corporation’s restricted and unrestricted cash balance is projected to be approximately $5.5
million at June 30, 2024. This is more than sufficient to fund debt service and operating costs for
the following fiscal year.

The outstanding debt balance will decline from $47.4 million for the year ending June 30, 2024, to
$44.5 million for the year ending June 30, 2025.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



Funding Sources
University Support

Total Funding from Related Organizations

Foundation operations
Endowment assessment

Operating pool investment earnings draw
Current year allocation from buildings

Distribution from CAPFA funds
Miscellaneous revenues
Total funding from operations

Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses
Support to University
Office of the President
Vice Presidents' allocations
Other allocations to university
Total Support to University

Operating
Development

Personnel

Other Operating
Total Development
Alumni

Personnel

Other Operating
Total Alumni
Administration

Personnel

Other Operating
Total Administration
Total Operating Uses

Total Funding Uses

Sources Less Uses

Attachment E

UCF FOUNDATION, INC.
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

2024-25 2023-24 2023-24 YOY
PROPOSED APPROVED PROJECTED Fav (Unfav)
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUALS Variance
$ $ $ $
11,126,498 11,046,138 11,246,138 (119,640)
11,126,498 11,046,138 11,246,138 (119,640)
4,600,000 4,200,000 4,200,000 400,000
11,600,000 5,600,000 5,628,830 5,971,170
1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 -
2,700,000 5,000,000 2,558,478 141,522
870,000 893,500 674,867 195,133
21,070,000 16,993,500 14,362,175 6,707,825
32,196,498 28,039,638 25,608,313 6,588,185
1,384,725 1,384,725 1,353,035 (31,690)
535,643 335,643 420,619 (115,024)
259,255 309,255 222,105 (37,150)
2,179,623 2,029,623 1,995,760 (183,863)
7,968,977 6,279,456 6,120,630 (1,848,346)
1,465,591 1,461,197 639,842 (825,749)
9,434,568 7,740,653 6,760,472 (2,674,095)
3,668,493 2,955,836 2,530,748 (1,137,744)
2,687,430 2,476,928 1,619,114 (1,068,316)
6,355,923 5,432,764 4,149,863 (2,206,060)
9,021,039 7,963,145 8,431,124 (589,915)
5,122,537 4,836,193 4,271,094 (851,443)
14,143,576 12,799,338 12,702,219 (1,441,357)
29,934,066 25,972,755 23,612,554 (6,321,513)
32,113,689 28,002,378 25,608,313 (6,505,376)
82,809 37,260 (0) 82,809



(€M UCF Foundation, Inc. (UCFF)
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

The University hired Rodney Grabowski as the new Senior Vice President for Advancement and
Partnerships and CEO of the UCF Foundation, Inc. in FY2022-2023. Grabowski took on the task
of evaluating the UCF Foundation’s resources and readiness for the University’s next
comprehensive fundraising campaign. Included in this planning process was ensuring alignment
between the University’s philanthropic goals and the strategic plan, and investments in the
necessary research, technology, and infrastructure needed to elevate philanthropy in support of
UCF.

These investments included:
e Executing a campaign feasibility study,

e Hiring Ologie, a national marketing and communications firm, to conduct a branding and
marketing assessment and refresh for the University,

e Hiring additional fundraisers and alumni engagement officers to continue building pipeline
and major gift opportunities,

¢ Finalizing campaign policies, and
e Hiring a new CFO and an inaugural Associate Vice President for Partnerships.

This work allowed Advancement and Partnerships to solidify the “Big Idea” framework, further
aligning the fundraising efforts to become a sustainable $100 million annual fundraising
organization.

Considering the personnel and resources required to support this goal and to continue the
necessary work required to enter the next phase of the campaign, the UCF Foundation is
proposing an increase of $6.5 million to the operating budget.

Sources:
e University support reflects a slight decrease in funding of 1%.

e The endowment assessment reflects a 9% increase, reflecting growth in contributions and
performance in the endowment pool.

e The Capital Projects Finance Authority (CAPFA) revenue is related to a land lease
agreement with a student housing project, Knights Circle whereby surplus revenues after
payment of debt service and operating expenses, flow to the UCF Foundation in the form
of ground rent payments. The UCF Foundation received its first waterfall payment in 2022
after an 11-year pause as Knight's Circle mitigated the rehabilitation of their properties.
Fiscal Years 2022 through 2023 reflected extra distributions related to COVID-19 revenue

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



holds adding to the UCF Foundation’s budgets. Knight’'s Circle leadership presented a
budget that is utilizing funds for capital improvements leading to a projected reduction in
waterfall payments to the UCF Foundation. Projected waterfall payments have been
reduced from $5 million annually to an average between $2 and $3 million. The UCF
Foundation has reduced this budget line reflecting the expected waterfall payment from
CAPFA.

e The operating draw reflects a proposed increase of $6 million primarily reflecting the use of
prior year budgeted reserves from the COVID-19 release payments from the CAPFA
Funding.

Uses:

e The University support reflects an increase to the budget, covering additional costs related
to the Office of the President’s projected expenses and increases in the Vice President’s
unrestricted funds.

e The UCF Foundation focused on filling budgeted positions in FY2023-2024. Understanding
this would take time, the FY2024-2025 budget reflected period-based additions for
personnel lines. This year the UCF Foundation restructured its operations and has
onboarded over 40 staff members including development officers, engagement officers,
and donor relations staff. The FY2024-2025 budget reflects the full impact of the filled
positions to the personnel budget across development, alumni, and administration, while
also adding eight positions to further enhancing donor events and experiences, alumni
engagement and leadership annual giving, and communications.

The UCF Foundation is also continuing its efforts to expand its campaign preparation efforts while
considering inflationary increases in the FY2024-2025 budget. These increases are incurred by
vendor contracts and subscriptions including the EverTrue Software cost increases, email
marketing tool conversion, and a refreshed database-wide wealth screening system.

Additional Background

UCFF’s principal function is to provide charitable and educational aid to the university. The
information provided in the quarterly reports is a reflection of the Foundation's unrestricted activity
only and does not include income distribution from endowment or revenue for current operations
with donor designations and restrictions.

The Foundation holds debt that matures on dates that range from October 2025 to July 2051. All
debt is secured by building rental revenues and collateralized by the same buildings. UCF
Foundation receives rental revenue from the university as well as non-cash support provided by
the university to fund compensation and benefits ($11.1 million).

Resource Considerations

The budget serves as a guideline for availability of courses for funds and how those will be utilized.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



Attachment F

UCF RESEARCH FOUNDATION INC.

PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

Funding Sources
Royalties and licensing fees
Contracts and grants 2
Contribution and other agreements income 2
Incubator Rents
Management fees and F&A*®

Total Funding Sources’

Funding Uses
Royalties and licensing allocations and expense
Contracts and grants expense 2
Contribution and other agreements expense 2
Incubator Rents
Other operating expenses 4
Gap Fund ®

Total Funding Uses

Sources Less Uses

2024-25

PROPOSED
BUDGET

$
1,250,000

21,000,000
4,000,000
350,000
3,500,000

30,100,000

937,500
21,000,000
4,000,000
350,000
2,000,000
250,000

28,537,500

1,562,500

2023-24

APPROVED
BUDGET

$
1,000,000

13,600,000
3,500,000
350,000
1,550,000

20,000,000

750,000
13,600,000

3,500,000
350,000

1,470,098
250,000

19,920,098

79,902

2023-24

PROJECTED
ACTUALS

$
1,712,553

18,832,975
3,885,804
357,268
2,422,660

27,211,260

1,284,416
18,832,975

3,882,629
309,701

1,207,801
207,135

25,724,657

1,486,603

YOY
Fav (Unfav)
Variance

$
(462,553)

2,167,025
114,196

(7,268)
1,077,340

2,888,740

346,916
(2,167,025)
(117,371)
(40,299)
(792,199)
(42,865)

(2,812,843)

75,897

' Total funding sources include all awarded monies regardless of applicable restrictions as UCFRF’s revenue is
recognized only to the extent expenses are incurred in executing the applicable contracts and grants or when an
enforceable promise is made. Due to this method of recognition, the presentation within may result in budget surpassing
revenue while conversely resulting in a budget deficit to expenses or the reverse. This leads to the appearance of favorable
or unfavorable positions per line item of budget to actual that do not reflect the factual activity; however, the overall net
impact is favorable since additional awards and funding dollars are continuously being received.

2 Contracts and grants as well as contributions and other agreement sources and uses exceeds the fiscal 2024 annualized
projected actuals and the fiscal 2024 budget with a projected growth for fiscal 2025 expected to be 10%, or $2.3 million

and 46%, or $7.9 million, respectfully.

3 Management fees and F&A represent the net funds retained by the Research Foundation after necessary distributions.
The fiscal 2025 proposed budget represents an 8.9% growth in net F&A dollars earned and retained which is in line with
the expected increase in awards as they allow for full indirect rate of 52% to applied.

* Other operating expenses includes funding for research foundation payroll and operating expenses plus offset by
reimbursed legal fees. The fiscal 2024 proposed budgeted amount considered the hiring of two Contracts Officers
throughout the fiscal year while fiscal 2024 annualized projected actuals highlights that these positions were not filled until
the third and fourth quarter of fiscal 2024. The fiscal 2025 proposed budget assumes a full year of the fiscal 2024
budgeted hires in addition to the hiring of an Accounting Manager and two Contracts & Grants Accountants throughout

® The 2024 Gap Fund Award Year was not be fully awarded due to the fewer number of proposals presented to this Board
during fiscal 2024. The fiscal 2024 annualized actuals represent expenses associated with prior year Gap Fund Award
Years that continue to be utilized for their proposed purpose. The Gap Fund program is fully budgeted in fiscal 2025 with
an expectation to distribute the full amount through out the fiscal year.



@, UCF Research Foundation, Inc. (UCFRF)
A —
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

UCFREF is currently recognizing a break-even position compared to the annualized projected
actuals for this period. This positive outcome can be attributed to the ongoing funding of contracts
and grants as well as contributions and other agreements, which have exceeded initial
expectations. It is anticipated that this trend will continue to be a contributing factor in the upcoming
fiscal year.

Overall, the UCFRF is experiencing a financial performance that is closely aligned with the
projected annualized actuals numbers. This demonstrates the commitment to prudent financial
management and responsible resource allocation and this sustained support allows UCFRF to
further their mission and initiatives effectively.

Total funding sources encompass all awarded monies, regardless of any applicable restrictions.
UCFRF recognizes revenue only when expenses are incurred in executing the respective
contracts and grants, or when an enforceable promise is made. This approach to revenue
recognition may sometimes lead to the appearance of budget surpassing revenue in certain line
items, while in others it may result in a budget deficit to expenses, or vice versa. To emphasize
these presentations may occasionally show favorable or unfavorable positions per line item when
compared to the actuals. However, it is crucial to understand that these figures may not always
reflect the true activity accurately. Overall, the net impact remains favorable due to the continuous
receipt of additional awards and funding dollars.

e UCFREF is proposing a $14 thousand, or 1%, overall increase in revenue and expenses for
fiscal 2025 as compared to fiscal 2024 annualized projected actuals. Overall, the FY2024-
2025 projected budget is $1.4 million, or 100%, greater than FY2023-2024 actual budget based
upon the continued growth in in contracts and grants as well as contributions and other
agreements.

e Contracts and grants as well as contributions and other agreement sources and uses exceeds
the FY2023-2024 annualized projected actuals and the fiscal 2024 budget with a projected
growth for FY2024-2025 expected to be 10%, or $2.3 million and 46%, or $7.9 million,
respectfully.

e Additionally, an 8.9% growth in net Facilities and Administrative (F&A) dollars earned and
retained is in line with the expected increase in awards as they allow for full indirect rate of 52%
to applied.

Other operating expenses include funding for research foundation payroll and operating expenses
plus offset by reimbursed legal fees. The FY2023-2024 proposed budgeted amount considered
the hiring of two Contracts Officers throughout the fiscal year while FY2023-2024 annualized
projected actuals highlights that these positions were not filled until the third and fourth quarter of

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



FY2023-2024. The FY2024-2025 proposed budget assumes a full year of the FY2023-2024
budgeted hires in addition to the hiring of an Accounting Manager and two Contracts & Grants
Accountants throughout FY2024-2025 due to sponsored research growth previously mentioned.

Additional Background

UCFRF promotes and supports the research activities of faculty, staff, and students. Its operating
activities include contracts, grants, royalties, contributions, rents, conferences, unit residuals, and
consortiums. UCFRF does not hold any debt.

Resource Considerations

There are no new resource considerations associated with this item.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



Funding Sources

Premium seating

Concessions and catering

Merchandise sales

Excess revenues from beverage contract
Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses

Services and supplies

Repairs and replacement (R&R) funding
Total Funding Uses

Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)
Tourism Development Tax Revenues
Transfers from UCFAA - Ticket sales
Transfers from UCFAA - Stadium rent
Transfers from UCFAA - Guaranteed royalty
Pledges for Leadership Center
Interest earnings
Debt service
Capitalized interest - new issuance
Debt service reserve - new issuance
Transfers to UCFAA - Excess Unrestricted Revenue
Total Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)

Sources Less Uses

Debt Service Summary

Tax-exempt bonds
Taxable bonds
Leadership Center

TDT Loan

New Towers Bond Series
Total

R&R Reserve Summary

Non-recurring maintenance (R&R) Expenses
Rust remediation
Total

Attachment G

UCF STADIUM CORPORATION
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

2024-25
PROPOSED
BUDGET

$
2,850,000

725,996
250,000
180,000
4,005,996

60,000
250,000
310,000

10,000,000
4,947,784
2,121,000
2,000,000

255,000

125,000
(3,621,920)
(1,513,465)
(10,000,000)
(8,009,395)
(3,695,996)

2023-24
APPROVED
BUDGET

$
2,798,500

500,000
250,000
180,000
3,728,500

55,000
250,000
305,000

4,562,250
2,121,000
2,000,000

255,000
50,000

(3,628,450)

(8,783,300)

(3,423,500)

2023-24

PROJECTED

ACTUALS

$
2,850,000

691,425
250,000
180,000
3,971,425

55,000
250,000
305,000

4,803,674
2,121,000
1,975,000

255,000
125,000

(3,628,450)

(9,317,649)

(3,666,425)

YOY
Fav (Unfav)
Variance

(5,000)

(5,000)

10,000,000
144,110

25,000

6,530
(1,513,465)
(10,000,000)

1,308,254
(29,571)

Annual Debt Service Fiscal Year 2025 Outstanding Principal
Principal Interest Total As of 6/30/24 As of 6/30/25
1,560,000 953,669 2,513,669 23,755,000 22,195,000
440,000 338,185 778,185 6,880,000 6,440,000
303,000 27,066 330,066 1,087,000 784,000
- 813,224 813,224 - 60,865,000
- 700,241 700,241 - 27,755,000
2,303,000 2,832,385 5,135,385 31,722,000 118,039,000
R&R Reserve Available for Use
Projected e Budgeted R
as of 7/1/2024 Contributions Expenditures ans”?nf“
915,183 250,000 - 1,165,183
915,183 250,000 - 1,165,183




@, UCF Stadium Corporation (UCFSC)
UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

The proposed FY2024-2025 budget reflects the first estimated $10 million annual allocation of
Tourist Development Tax revenues recently awarded from Orange County, $1.5 million of debt
service costs related to the issuance of new debt to fund the Stadium Tower Expansion Project,
and the funding of a $10 million debt issuance reserve approved by UCF the Board of Trustees
on March 28, 2024.

The proposed budget also reflects UCF’s second year in the Big 12 Conference and seven home
football games with a stadium at full capacity. Significant assumptions include:

¢ Premium seating revenue assumes no price increase but continued sales to a sold-out crowd.

e Concessions and catering revenue conservatively assume approximately $100,000 of sales
per home game, plus a small increase attributed primarily to the sale of alcohol. Increases in
recent years were generated by alcohol sales.

e Merchandise sales and excess revenues from beverage contract represent allocations of
revenue from contracts between the university and third parties. These budgets remain
unchanged; however, the exclusive beverage provider contract is currently being renegotiated.

e Services and supplies include audit and other administrative fees. Budget assumes 5%
increase in audit fees.

e The annual contribution to the R&R reserve is based on management’s discretion and will
remain consistent with the current year at $250,000. The budget assumes UCFAA will directly
cover any required repairs and allow the reserve to accumulate to approximately $1.1 million
by the end of fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.

o Ticket sales assume a 3% price increase at approximately 98% of available tickets sold.

e Guaranteed royalty and stadium rent revenues are based on payment schedules pursuant to
agreements with UCFAA and are sufficient to cover the corporation’s existing debt service
requirements in the event other pledged revenue sources fall short of expectations.

¢ Interest earnings are generated from cash balances held in the university’s shared account.
Budget assumes interest rates and the university’s allocation methodology remain materially
consistent with FY2023-2024.

e Principal and interest represent scheduled debt service payments for the corporation’s existing
debt and estimated payments for planned debt issuances. Once the debt service requirements
are fulfilled, any unrestricted excess revenues are transferred to UCFAA.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



e Projected revenues for fiscal year 2025 are anticipated to yield approximately $8.0 million in
unrestricted excess revenues back to UCFAA that depends on the receipt of these funds to
maintain day-to-day operations.

Additional Background

UCFSC holds debt related to the construction of the university’s football stadium. UCFSC’s debt
matures on dates ranging from March 2029 to March 2036. Payments are due in September and
March annually. It is secured by pledged revenues from UCF Athletics Association including gross
ticket revenues, stadium rent, away game guarantees, conference distributions, and a guaranteed
royalty payment. There is a support agreement whereby the University will use legally available
revenues to fund deficiencies that may arise in the event the corporation is unable to make the
minimum bond payments.

Resource Considerations

Pledged revenues are anticipated to be sufficient to fund the corporation’s debt service obligations
and operating costs for the year, leaving a surplus that will be distributed back to UCFAA.
Additionally, the corporation’s restricted and unrestricted cash balance is projected to be
approximately $4.0 million at June 30, 2024.

The corporation will hold an R&R reserve of approximately $1.1 million.

The outstanding debt balance will increase from $31.7 million for the year ending June 30, 2024,
to $118.0 million for the year ending June 30, 2025.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



Attachment H

CENTRAL FLORIDA CLINICAL PRACTICE ORGANIZATION INC.

PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

2024-25 2023-24 2023-24 YOY
PROPOSED APPROVED PROJECTED Fav (Unfav)

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUALS Variance
Funding Sources $ $ $ $
Patient Care Revenue' 11,717,524 8,962,268 9,465,672 2,251,852
Other Operating Revenue® 1,771,947 1,580,639 1,792,408 (20,460)
Other Non-Operating Revenue® 28,294,738 - 24,000,000 4,294,738
Total Funding Sources 41,784,209 10,542,906 35,258,080 6,526,129
Funding Uses
Professional Services” 6,826,768 5,054,715 5,314,563 (1,512,205)
Medical Supplies, Services & Equipment5 3,749,928 2,962,163 3,936,348 186,420
Facility Expense 6 2,746,268 130,140 131,032 (2,615,236)
Information Technology7 488,218 347,870 325,533 (162,685)
Other Expense 189,791 143,182 133,061 (56,730)
Transfers to the College of Medicine 8 36,063,435 3,557,256 19,058,532 (17,004,903)
Total Funding Uses 50,064,408 12,195,325 28,899,068 (21,165,340)
Sources Less Uses (8,280,199) (1,652,419) 6,359,012 (14,639,210)

! patient Care Revenue is expected to increase in FY2025 compared to FY2024 projection due to the planned recruitment
of four faculty physicians and through the continued growth of patient volume associated with physicians hired in FY2024.
In addition, as part of the development of the UCF Academic Health Science Center, the CFCPO will be providing various
shared services and business operations support for the College of Health Professions and Sciences (CHPS) for their
Rehabilitation and Wellness Programs. As such, CPHS clinical business units are now included in the financials.

2 Other Operating Revenue is expected to remain consistent with fiscal year 2024 projections and is mostly comprised of
fee-for-service revenue generated by HealthARCH and medical professional services provided to outside partners.

% Other Non-Operating Revenue reflects mainly revenue associated with a new affiliation agreement between the UCF
College of Medicine and Nemours Children's Hospital. The nature of this agreement is described in the attached narrative.
In addition, this line item includes new revenue associated with the roll-out of the UCF Health Mobile Clinic that will be
supplying medical and health education services to underserved populations in the community.

* The increase in Professional Services Expense is due to an increase in costs associated with staff hired through the
professional employer organization (PEO). This increase is due to higher benefit costs, additional staff needed to support
faculty new hires, and the development of an internal nurse triage team currently being outsourced.

® Medical Supplies, Services, and Equipment is expected to increase with higher patient care revenue; however, the
increase is offset by the elimination of outsourced triage services.

® The increase in budgeted facility costs is due to the expected use of $2.5 million in cash reserves for the purpose of
renovating the UCF Health clinic at the East Orlando location. This renovation will increase the square footage of patient
care space within the existing building and will allow for continued growth of UCF Health. Other facility related expenses
are also seeing annual inflationary increases.

"The increase in Information Technology Expense is due to the planned purchase of hardware and licenses for new
providers, the replacement of outdated computer equipment, and various projects to improve efficiencies and enhance
current functionality of the electronic health records system.

® The majority of the budgeted transfers reflects new expenses related to the participation in the Medicaid Supplemental
Payment program. In addition, this line item includes multiple one-time investments, incl. renovation of the research labs
located at the UCF Lake Nona Cancer Center for Burnett School faculty researchers, funding of various other one-time
research and education initiatives of the College of Medicine, as well as an increase in internal student scholarships. The
one-time investments are all funded through existing cash reserves within the CFCPO.



( Central Florida Clinical Practice
gﬁ Organization, Inc. (CFCPO)

UCF

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

e In FY2023-2024, the UCF College of Medicine (COM) established an affiliation agreement with
The Nemours Foundation to establish the University of Central Florida College of Medicine -
Nemours Children’s Health Department of Pediatrics to train the next generation of pediatric
physicians. This affiliation will be essential for collaboration in all missions of both institutions
to include patient care, medical education, research, and community service. The annual
revenue generated by this agreement reflects the significant direct and indirect value that COM
will provide to Nemours related to its outstanding reputation in the community and for the
professional development of its affiliate faculty appointments.

e Beginning in FY2023-2024, COM, in connection with adding the Department of Pediatrics will
have a significant increase in its participation in the Florida Medical School Medicaid
Supplemental Payment program through the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration.
As such, COM is required to make substantial payments as a requirement of participation. This
program provides supplemental payments in addition to standard Medicaid reimbursement
rates and is to support Florida College of Medicine faculty practices and public hospitals as it
is designed to increase access to quality healthcare for the Medicaid population while training
future health care providers.

e In FY2024-2025, COM is implementing a shared services model documented in a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between COM and the College of Health Professions
and Sciences (CHPS) by which COM will be aiding in various business functions to support
the clinical activities of the CHPS Rehabilitation and Wellness Services division. Through
CFCPO, COM will provide accounting, budgeting, clinical recruitment, and revenue cycle
services. In addition, COM through UCF Health is establishing its first mobile clinic which will
be supplying medical and education services to underserved populations in the community. All
financial functions of the mobile clinic will be managed through the CFCPO.

¢ In addition to the activities described above, increases in patient care revenue are expected as
UCF Health plans to recruit four new UCF Health physicians while new physicians hired in
fiscal year 2024 will continue to grow their practice. Altogether, the proposed budget for
FY2024-2025 reflects a 19% revenue increase over current year projections.

e Budgeted expenses reflect a 73% increase over FY2023-2024 projections. The driving factors
are:

o Startup costs for four physician new hires estimated at $700 thousand that includes added
support staff.
o Increase in scholarship funding for medical students of $500 thousand.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



o An increase in staffing costs associated with higher benefit costs, the creation of a nurse
triage team, and the addition of the CHPS clinics and the UCF Health mobile clinic resulting
in a combined $1.5 million increase over current year.

o A combined projected investment of $11 million for academic and research initiatives at
COM, space renovations at the UCF Lake Nona Cancer Center, and space renovations at
the East Orlando location of UCF Health.

o And finally, an estimated $22 million payment to the Florida Agency for Healthcare
Administration to increase participation in the Medicaid Supplemental Payment program
which is $4 million more than the projected payment for FY2023-2024.

Additional Background

CFCPO is an affiliated organization formed to support the missions of the UCF College of Medicine
(COM). The primary mission of CFCPO is to provide administrative services for COM’s clinical
activities, which includes UCF Health, the faculty practice of the College, and HealthARCH, a
healthcare consulting unit. As part of the administrative services, CFCPO performs billing and
collection of professional fees associated with clinical services and fees for services provided by
HealthARCH, and directly pays associated operating expenses for those services. The CFCPO
budget includes UCF Clinical LLC, a subsidiary and disregarded entity under CFCPO. This entity
has a contract arrangement with a Professional Employer Organization (PEO) that manages the
payroll and benefits for the clinical and administrative staff of UCF Health and HealthARCH.

Resource Considerations

Due to the investments of cash reserves into strategic initiatives, CFCPO is budgeting a deficit of
$8.3 million for fiscal year 2025. The projected, uncommitted year-end cash reserves and cash
equivalents for 2024 is $16 million.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



@ Board of Trustees

Budget and Finance Committee
UCF

June 24, 2024

Agenda Item
BUDC-3: Renewal of Reducing Revolving Line of Credit — Fifth Third Bank

Proposed Board Action

The Budget and Finance Committee is asked to recommend to the Board of Trustees, on its
consent agenda, approval of the annual renewal of UCF Athletics Association’s reducing revolving
line of credit with Fifth Third Bank.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action

* Florida Statute 1004.28
* UCF-4.034 University Direct Support Organizations Regulation
+ Bylaws Article Il, Section 6

Supporting Documentation Included

Attachment A: Modification of Renewal Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other
Loan Documents

Facilitators/Presenters

Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance
Terry Donovan, Deputy Athletics Director, Administration & Engagement and UCF Athletics
Association Chief Financial Officer

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



‘ Renewal of Reducing Revolving Line of
}%?’: Credit — Fifth Third Bank

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Objective

The Budget and Finance Committee is being asked to review and recommend approval of the
annual renewal of UCF Athletics Association’s (UCFAA) reducing revolving line of credit with Fifth
Third Bank.

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

Key terms of the renewal are as follows:

e Principal shall bear interest at a floating rate equal to 79% of the 30-day SOFR Rate plus
1.34%, with no rate minimum provision. This is consistent with the terms of the previous
renewal.

e Principal payment of $345,000 will be due on July 15, 2024. The remaining principal
outstanding will be $3,780,000.

Additional Background

This line of credit was opened in 2004 for the purpose of constructing facilities for women’s sports.
The original amount of the line was $4.5 million and was increased to $8.5 million in 2006 to help
fund the initial costs of the football stadium and then additional needs once the stadium bonds
were issued. Each year, the line is renewed and includes a negotiated principal payment. The
interest rate on the line is tax-exempt. There are no more draws available on the line.

Rationale

Renewal is necessary because UCFAA does not have the funds available to pay off the
outstanding principal balance and would be unable to make draws on the revolving line, limiting
UCFAA’s ability to pay expenses in a timely manner.

Implementation Plan
Upon approval by the UCF Board of Trustees, the renewal will be executed.

Resource Considerations

The UCF Athletic Association’s FY2024-2025 proposed budget includes $570,500 for principal
and interest on the note to be funded from operating funds.

Conclusion

Staff recommends the approval of the renewal of the reducing revolving line of credit with Fifth
Third Bank.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA



Attachment A

ELEVENTH MODIFICATION OF
RENEWAL REDUCING REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT PROMISSORY NOTE
AND OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS

THIS TENTH MODIFICATION OF RENEWAL REDUCING REVOLVING LINE
OF CREDIT PROMISSORY NOTE AND OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS (this
“Modification”) is executed as of the 15" day of July, 2024, by and between FIFTH THIRD
BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“Lender”), whose address is 200 East Robinson Street,
Suite 1000, Orlando, Florida 32801, and UCF ATHLETICS ASSOCIATION, INC., a not-for-
profit Florida corporation (“Borrower”), whose address is 4192 North Orion Boulevard, Orlando,
Florida 32816.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Borrower is indebted to Lender under a $4,125,000.00 reducing revolving
line of credit loan (the “Loan”) as evidenced by that certain Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of
Credit Promissory Note by Borrower in favor of Lender, effective as of December 31, 2013, as
modified by that certain First Modification and Renewal of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of
Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan Documents dated as of July 3, 2014, that certain Second
Modification of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan
Documents dated as of July 5, 2015, that certain Third Modification of Renewal Reducing
Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan Documents dated to be effective as of
July 4, 2016, that certain Fourth Modification of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of Credit
Promissory Note and Other Loan Documents dated to be effective as of July 3, 2017, that certain
Fifth Modification of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other
Loan Documents dated to be effective as of June 30, 2018, that certain Sixth Modification of
Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan Documents dated
as of July 20, 2019; that certain Seventh Modification of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of
Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan Documents dated as of July 19, 2020; that certain Eighth
Modification of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan
Documents dated as of July 18, 2021, that certain Ninth Modification of Renewal Reducing
Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note and Other Loan Documents dated as of July 17, 2022,
and that certain Tenth Modification of Renewal Reducing Revolving Line of Credit Promissory
Note and Other Loan Documents dated as of July 16, 2023 (collectively as modified, the “Note”),
with a Maturity Date of July 15, 2024, pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2013 (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
at any time or from time to time, the “Loan Agreement’) and other related loan documents (as the
same may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified at any time or from time to time,
collectively, the “Loan Documents™); and

WHEREAS, the Loan is scheduled to mature on July 15, 2024 and the Borrower has
requested the Lender to renew and extend the Loan through July 15, 2025, and the Lender has
agreed to do so, provided the Borrower executes this Modification, including without limitation
agreeing to the amendments set forth herein, and reaffirms the pledge of certain revenues available
to the Borrower in favor of Lender for the payment of the Loan; and

30647415v2 1



WHEREAS, the Borrower and the Lender have agreed to modify the Note, the Loan
Agreement and the Loan Documents upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises hereof, and the mutual covenants
contained herein, and the sum of TEN AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) in hand paid by the
Borrower to the Lender, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties
agree as follows:

1.

(a)

(b)

30647415v2

Recitals. All of the foregoing recitations are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

Representations of Borrower. In order to induce Lender to enter into this
Agreement, Borrower does hereby acknowledge, represent and warrant to and in
favor of Lender that: (a) the indebtedness represented by the Note is due from
Borrower to Lender in accordance with the terms of the Note as modified, free from
any defense, claim, or right to set-off; (b)as of July 15, 2024, the maximum
principal balance of the Loan is $3,780,000.00 plus accrued and unpaid interest,
(c) the principal payment on the Loan, due on July 15, 2024, in the amount of
$345,000.00, is being paid by the Borrower concurrent with the execution and
delivery hereof, and (d) there are no suits, judgments, bankruptcies or executions
pending against Borrower in any court which could in any way materially affect
Borrower's ability to make payments of obligations due on the Loan.

Modification of Loan Documents. The Note, the Loan Agreement and/or the other
Loan Documents are hereby modified as follows:

The definition of the term “Maturity Date” in the first line of Section 1 of the Note
is hereby amended by deleting “July 15, 2024 and inserting “July 15, 2025” in
place thereof.

Section 3(b) of the Note is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

“(b)  Principal Payments. Principal shall be payable on the following dates, in
the following amounts (assuming the Maturity Date continues to be
extended for successive Extension Periods as hereinafter provided):

DATE AMOUNT
07/15/2025 | $360,000
07/15/2026 | $370,000
07/15/2027 | $385,000
07/15/2028 | $400,000
07/15/2029 | $420,000
07/15/2030 | $435,000
07/15/2031 | $450,000
07/15/2032 | $470,000
07/15/2033 | $490,000




30647415v2

Reaffirmation of Revenue Pledge. The Borrower hereby reaffirms the pledge of the
Collateral as defined in the Loan Documents, including without limitation all
student athletic fee revenues from the University of Central Florida, and agrees and
confirms that said pledge remains in full force and effect and continues to secure
the Loan. Further, the Borrower represents to the Lender that the Board of Trustees
of the University of Central Florida has not rescinded or modified the pledge by the
Borrower of the Collateral to the repayment of the Loan. The Borrower also hereby
authorizes Lender at any time to file any new or amended financing statements with
the Florida Secured Transaction Registry deemed by Lender in its discretion to be
necessary or appropriate to ensure perfection of the security interest and pledge
reaffirmed hereby.

WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. BY THE EXECUTION HEREOF,
BORROWER AND LENDER HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY
AND INTENTIONALLY AGREE, THAT:

(a) NEITHER THE BORROWER NOR LENDER, NOR ANY
ASSIGNEE, SUCCESSOR, HEIR OR LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
OF ANY OF THE SAME SHALL SEEK A JURY TRIAL IN ANY
LAWSUIT, PROCEEDING, COUNTERCLAIM, OR ANY OTHER
LITIGATION PROCEDURE ARISING FROM OR BASED UPON
THIS MODIFICATION OR ANY LOAN DOCUMENT
EVIDENCING, SECURING OR RELATING TO THE
OBLIGATIONS OR TO THE DEALINGS OR RELATIONSHIP
BETWEEN OR AMONG THE PARTIES THERETO:;

(b) NEITHER THE BORROWER NOR LENDER SHALL SEEK TO
CONSOLIDATE ANY SUCH ACTION, IN WHICH A JURY TRIAL
HAS BEEN WAIVED, WITH ANY OTHER ACTION IN WHICH A
JURY TRIAL HAS NOT BEEN OR CANNOT BE WAIVED;

(c) THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH HAVE BEEN FULLY
NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES HERETO, AND THESE
PROVISIONS SHALL BE SUBJECT TO NO EXCEPTIONS;

(d) NEITHER THE BORROWER NOR LENDER HAS IN ANY WAY
AGREED WITH OR PRESENTED TO ANY OTHER PARTY THAT
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH WILL NOT BE FULLY
ENFORCED IN ALL INSTANCES; AND

(e) THIS PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR LENDER
TO ENTER INTO THIS MODIFICATION AND SHALL RUN TO
THE BENEFIT OF LENDER AND BORROWER ONLY AND
SHALL NOT BENEFIT ANY THIRD PARTIES.

Fees. Borrower agrees that all costs and expenses associated with the negotiation,
preparation, execution and delivery of this Agreement, including, but not limited



30647415v2

to, the Lender's attorney's fees, and documentary stamp fee and intangible taxes, if
applicable, (together with all interest and penalties thereon, if any) and other related
expenses, plus accrued interest on the Loan, shall be paid by Borrower on or before
the effective date of this Modification. Borrower agrees to defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless the Lender from and against any and all such costs and expenses, and
agrees that the Lender shall not in any way be held liable for such costs and
expenses.

Conditions to Effectiveness. This Modification and the effectiveness of the
provisions hereof shall be conditioned upon (i) the accuracy of the representations
of the Borrower set forth in Section 2 above and each of the other representations
and warranties set forth in the other Loan Documents, in each case as of the
effective date hereof, (ii) payment of the fees and expenses set forth in Section 6
above, (ii1) receipt by the Lender of a certificate of status issued by the Secretary of
State of Florida not earlier than fifteen (15) business days prior to the effective date
hereof and satisfactory results of lien searches and other due diligence conducted
by the Lender in its discretion, (iv) execution and delivery by the Borrower of this
Modification and the Certificate of Organizational Documents, Resolutions and
Incumbency as of the date of execution of this Modification, and (v) any other
agreement, certificate, instrument or other document reasonably required by the
Lender.

Miscellaneous. Except for the changes and modifications effected hereby, it is
expressly agreed that the Loan Documents shall remain in full force and effect in
strict accordance with the terms thereof, and nothing herein contained shall affect
or be construed to affect the other Loan Documents, or to release or affect the
liability of any party or parties who may now or hereafter by liable under or on
account of the Loan Documents. This Modification constitutes the complete
agreement between the parties hereto and incorporates all prior discussions,
agreements and representations made in regard to the matters set forth herein. This
Modification shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of, the heirs,
executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the
parties hereto. This Modification shall be governed by and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Modification have executed this
Modification in a manner and form sufficient to bind them as of the day and year first above
written.

LENDER:
FIFTH THIRD BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By:

Name: Lisa Z. Cox
Title: Senior Vice President

BORROWER:

UCF ATHLETICS ASSOCIATION, INC., a
Florida not-for-profit corporation

By:
Name: Terry Mohajir
Title: President

UCF ATHLETICS ASSOCIATION, INC., a
Florida not-for-profit corporation

By:
Name: Terry Donovan
Title: Treasurer




@ Board of Trustees

Budget and Finance Committee
UCF

June 24, 2024

Agenda Item
BUDC-4: UCF Stadium Corporation Release of Unrestricted Surplus

Proposed Board Action

The Budget and Finance Committee is asked to recommend to the Board of Trustees, on its
consent agenda, approval of the UCF Stadium Corporation Release of Unrestricted Surplus.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action

* Florida Statute 1004.28

* UCF-4.034 University Direct Support Organizations Regulation
* Bylaws Article Il, Section 6

Supporting Documentation Included

Attachment A: UCF Stadium Corporation Proposed FY2024-2025 Operating Budget

Facilitators/Presenters

Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance
Terry Donovan, UCFAA Executive Associate Athletics Director Chief Financial Officer

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



UCF Stadium Corporation Release of
Unrestricted Surplus

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

&
UCF

Objective

The Budget and Finance Committee is being asked to recommend approval of the release of UCF
Stadium Corporation’s (UCFSC) unrestricted surplus for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, to
the UCF Athletics Association (UCFAA).

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

The attached FY2024-2025 operating budget, as approved by UCFSC’s Board of Directors, is
based on the proforma financial information previously submitted to the UCF Board of Trustees
for the approval of the corporation’s new debt issuance. It reflects the release of the projected
unrestricted surplus in the amount of $8,009,395. This represents the estimate of funds that will
be available to transfer to UCFAA after UCFSC’s annual debt service requirements, contributions
to the repair and replacement (R&R) reserve, and annual operating costs are funded. The release
of the unrestricted surplus is offset by the transfer of pledged ticket sales and reflected as an
estimated net transfer of $3,061,611 on UCFAA’s FY2024-2025 budget.

The unrestricted surplus distributed back to UCFAA is likely to exceed $8,009,395 if pledged
football revenues exceed those early proforma projections and loan proceeds are used to fund
capitalized interest on the new debt issuance.

Additional Background

UCFSC’s term loan is secured by football ticket sales as well as rent and guaranteed royalty
payments from UCFAA. These pledged revenues are anticipated to be sufficient to fund UCFSC’s
annual debt service, R&R contributions, and operating costs. Football away game guarantees and
conference distributions are also pledged but are not reflected in the annual budget because the
funds are not needed. Additionally, there is a support agreement whereby the university will use
legally available revenues to fund deficiencies that may arise in the event UCFSC is unable to
make its minimum bond payments.

Rationale

UCFSC has minimal operations. The release of the unrestricted surplus to UCFAA has been the
historical funding model for these DSOs.

Implementation Plan

The release of the unrestricted surplus to UCFAA typically begins toward the end of the second
quarter after the UCFSC’s annual debt service, R&R contributions, and operating costs are funded.

Resource Considerations
UCFAA relies on the use of these funds to support its operations.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



Conclusion

Staff recommends the approval of the release of UCF Stadium Corporation’s FY2024-2025
unrestricted surplus to UCF Athletics Association.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA



Funding Sources

Premium seating

Concessions and catering

Merchandise sales

Excess revenues from beverage contract
Total Funding Sources

Funding Uses

Services and supplies

Repairs and replacement (R&R) funding
Total Funding Uses

Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)
Tourism Development Tax Revenues
Transfers from UCFAA - Ticket sales
Transfers from UCFAA - Stadium rent
Transfers from UCFAA - Guaranteed royalty
Pledges for Leadership Center
Interest earnings
Debt service

Capitalized interest - new issuance

Debt service reserve - new issuance

Transfers to UCFAA - Excess Unrestricted Revenue
Total Non-operating Sources/ (Uses)

Sources Less Uses

Debt Service Summary

Tax-exempt bonds
Taxable bonds
Leadership Center

TDT Loan

New Towers Bond Series
Total

R&R Reserve Summary

Non-recurring maintenance (R&R) Expenses
Rust remediation
Total

UCF STADIUM CORPORATION
PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

2024-25 2023-24 2023-24
PROPOSED APPROVED PROJECTED
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUALS
$ $ $

2,850,000 2,798,500 2,850,000
725,996 500,000 691,425
250,000 250,000 250,000
180,000 180,000 180,000
4,005,996 3,728,500 3,971,425
60,000 55,000 55,000
250,000 250,000 250,000
310,000 305,000 305,000
10,000,000 - -
4,947,784 4,562,250 4,803,674
2,121,000 2,121,000 2,121,000
2,000,000 2,000,000 1,975,000
255,000 255,000 255,000
125,000 50,000 125,000
(3,621,920) (3,628,450) (3,628,450)
(1,513,465) - -
(10,000,000) - -
(8,009,395) (8,783,300) (9,317,649)
(3,695,996) (3,423,500) (3,666,425)

YOY
Fav (Unfav)
Variance

(5,000)

(5,000)

10,000,000
144,110

25,000

6,530
(1,513,465)
(10,000,000)
1,308,254
(29,571)

Annual Debt Service Fiscal Year 2025 Outstanding Principal
Principal Interest Total As of 6/30/24 As of 6/30/25
1,560,000 953,669 2,513,669 23,755,000 22,195,000
440,000 338,185 778,185 6,880,000 6,440,000
303,000 27,066 330,066 1,087,000 784,000
- 813,224 813,224 - 60,865,000
- 700,241 700,241 - 27,755,000
2,303,000 2,832,385 5,135,385 31,722,000 118,039,000
R&R Reserve Available for Use
Projected Contributions Budgeted Projected
as of 7/1/2024 Expenditures  as of 6/30/2025
915,183 250,000 - 1,165,183
915,183 250,000 - 1,165,183




Board of Trustees

Budget and Finance Committee

June 24, 2024

Agenda Item
BUDC-5: UCF Pouring Rights with Coca-Cola — Contract Extension Approval

Proposed Board Action

The Budget and Finance Committee is asked to recommend to the Board of Trustees, on its

consent agenda, approval of a 10-year contract extension for university pouring rights with
the Coca-Cola Company.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action

Florida Statutes s. 1001.73. University board empowered to act as trustee.

Supporting Documentation Included

Attachment A: Contract Summary Form

Facilitators/Presenters

Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance
Jon Varnell, Vice President for Administrative Operations
Kevin Sowers, Assistant Vice President for Auxiliary Services

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



UCF Pouring Rights with Coca-Cola -

@1 Contract Extension Approval

UCF

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Objective

Approval of the Coca-Cola contract extension is related to university beverage pouring rights and
sponsorship for UCF campuses and is a revenue source for both the campuses and the UCF
Athletics Association (UCFAA). An extension of this contract with Coca-Cola will allow for greater
return of revenues and donations to UCF, while also creating scholarships and job opportunities
for students.

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

Through negotiations with Coca-Cola between the university and UCFAA, this contract will include
growth in the below areas.

Sponsorship revenue will increase over the life of the term by 31% from the current annual
$1,200,000 to $1,500,000 in the first year and escalates to $1,669,074 by the final year of
the contract.
Analysis of 11 active comparable Football Bowl Subdivision schools, including seven from
the Big XII, reveals an average annual sponsorship of $1,310,416.
Commissions on vended products will remain at 35% of sales with a $300,000 annual
minimum guarantee.
Campus product donations will increase 44% over current during the contract term to an
average of $36,000 annually. This will benefit the campus through distribution to
departmental and student organizations.
UCFAA product and equipment donations represent a contract increase of 95% collectively
of product and equipment. This $131,000 annual average helps support UCFAA by lowering
the amount of hydration products and equipment needed to be purchased directly.
Annual funding of $15,000 has been added to support campus sustainability initiatives.
Professional development opportunities for students:

o Three (3) Tuition Scholarships annually for incoming freshmen (Florida Prepaid

College Foundation)

o Three (3) Summer Paid Student Internships (New)

o Two (2) Paid Campus Ambassadors (Currently 1)

o Student Athlete summer jobs programs (New)
The contract renewal includes funds to support campus and Athletics marketing initiatives.
A new $10,000 annual funding commitment has been added to support support Athletics
events or initiatives.

Additional Background

N/A

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



Rationale

This new agreement would help support the Mission XlI objectives with corporate partnerships

and growing critical support for the financial obligations of the UCFAA operating budget. It will

also aid in providing championship-caliber services to our students and student athletes in their
educational and career pursuits with the new summer jobs programs, and corporate internship

opportunities.

Implementation Plan

No implementation plan is needed, as services will be continuous to current operation.

Resource Considerations

There are three categories for financial consideration that make up approximately $24.3 million of
contract value over the life of this proposed contract. This represents a 40% growth over prior
contract structure.

Sponsorship Revenue - The sponsorship structure represents a revenue income of
$15,500,000 over a 10-year period.

Other Revenue or Expense Savings resources - Other sources include an Athletics
Concession Fee, Beverage vending commission, Sustainability funding, Marketing funding,
Athletic Campaign funds and product donations. These additional categories represent
approximately $6.743 million of revenue or expense savings to the campus over the 10-
year period.

Additional Campus Benefit — There are four additional benefits within for Annual
Scholarships, Paid Internships, Athletic Summer Jobs programs, and Campus Ambassador
Program. Although not a direct financial benefit to the university, the value is approximately
$2.056 million over the 10-year period creating opportunities for students to gain paid
professional experience.

Conclusion

Based on the information provided, staff recommends approval of the Coca-Cola contract
extension.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 2



Attachment A

Summary of Agreement

Purpose/Background

The purpose of this discussion and vote is to determine whether
to solidify the partnership between UCF and the Coca-Cola
Company via a long-term, mutually beneficial, extension. Both
members of UCF Administration and UCF Athletics have agreed
this is worthy of approval to move forward with the contract
extension.

Coca-Cola Company has been a long-standing partner to the
university and is a leader in beverage supply and venue
sponsorship. They continually exceed in areas of community
engagement and campus support through product donations and
professional opportunities for students.

Having evaluated a number of other pouring rights agreements in
higher education that are currently active, it was determined that
the only true competitor to Coca-Cola would be Pepsi. Upon
reviewing these evaluations, it was decided that remaining with
Coca-Cola was of greater benefit considering Coca-Cola is
structured with services being provided by franchisee bottlers
over a singular corporate model. The Coca-Cola Florida
franchisee can provide better resources and partnership and is
represented as one of Florida’s largest certified minority-owned
businesses with a commitment to serving the community.

Considering the longevity of the relationship, and Coca-Cola
Florida’s ability to meet the service deliverables to UCF
campuses, Coca-Cola will continue to provide consistent service
and support along with increased financial benefit.

Parties

UCF, UCFAA, and the Coca-Cola Company to include Coca-Cola
Florida

Term

July 1, 2024 - 6/30/2034 (10-Year Extension)

Current agreement ends June 30, 2024, but does have a 3-year
renewal option.

Obligations of UCF

UCFAA to provide sponsorship components to include signage
and event access.

UCF to provide pathway to Coca-Cola to sell and promote
product.

Obligations of other
party

To provide beverage services to the campus through vending,
retail, concessions and catering in exchange for sponsorship
revenues, commission revenues, and donated product.

Financial terms

Paid by Coca-Cola:

e Sponsorship Fee $1,500,000 year 1-5 with 2.15%
escalation years 6-10 to grow to $1,669,074
Athletics Concession Fee $25,000

¢ Commission on vending sales at 35% with a $300,000
minimum guarantee.

e Product donations to campus $30,000 year 1 with 4%
annual growth rate.




Summary of Agreement

e Product donation to UCFAA $80,000 year 1 with 4% annual
growth rate

Powerade product and equipment donation $35,000 annually.
Athletic Campaign Fund $10,000 annually

Sustainability Funds - $15,000 annually

Marketing Funds Campus - $37,500

Marketing Funds UCFAA - $37,500

Termination rights

No change to previous agreement.

Additional terms

Coca-Cola to provide scholarships, paid campus ambassador
program, paid internships, and paid athletic summer jobs
program.

Link to agreement

Campus-Wide Sponsorship Agreement



https://mcusercontent.com/b114242f8f71eec93a1365440/files/3a8719be-bbd9-5b05-319d-d0daaf6f7b3e/University_of_Central_Florida_Sponsorship_Agreement_7_1_2024_thru_6_30_2034.pdf

Board of Trustees

Budget and Finance Committee

June 24, 2024

Agenda Item
INFO-1: University Investment Report — 3rd Quarter, Ended March 31, 2024

Proposed Board Action

This item is being presented for information purposes only.

Authority for Board of Trustees Action

Florida Statutes sections 1011.42(5) and 218.415
University Regulation UCF-4.014 Investments
UCF Investment Policy Manual

Supporting Documentation Included

Attachment A: University Investment Report — 3rd Quarter, Ended March 31, 2024
Attachment B: And Co and Mariner Merger Letter

Attachment C: Mariner Fact Sheet

Facilitators/Presenters
Gerald Hector, Senior Vice President for Administration and Finance
Bert Francis, Assistant Vice President for Debt Management and University Treasurer

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA



C University Investment Report -
g’ 3rd Quarter, Ended March 31, 2024

UCF EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Objective

The university Treasury office has worked with our Mariner Institutional (Formerly AndCo)
investment consultants to prepare the attached quarterly investment report for the quarter ended
March 31, 2024.

Summary of Key Observations/Recommendations

This quarter includes the following highlights and notable changes:

¢ AndCo was recently acquired by the firm Mariner Institutional to form a strategic partnership
to run and lead their new institutional consulting/advisory business unit.

o There will be no change to the people, process, service, and engagement terms as
a result of this acquisition.

o Post acquisition, Mariner Institutional will continue to be its own legal entity and
separate investment advisor operating under the same legacy AndCo registration
and CRD identification number.

o The quarterly UCF Investment board reports will now reflect the new Mariner name
and branding.

o Details of this acquisition, and facts about Mariner Institutional, have been attached
for reference.

e Based on advice and recommendation of Mariner (our investment adivsors), on June 14th,
2024, the University requested a rebalancing of the Bank of New York investment pools to
ensure that the portfolio remained in line with the board approved allocation percentages of
our University Investment Policy Statement (IPS). This rebalancing, as further described in
the attached letter, sold $5.0 million in equities held in Pool Ill and $6.0 million of equities
held in Pool IV, and redeployed these funds into the Pool | account to continue to take
advantage of higher interest rate returns. This rebalancing reduced the portfolio’s total
equity percentage from 18% to 17% (Attachment B).

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 1



The University recently provided our investment return information to our State University
System peers for survey benchmarking purposes. The results of that survey are attached
for reference. The results showed that UCF’s investment returns have exceeded the
returns of each surveyed university for the end of fiscal year 2023, and through the first half
of fiscal year 2024 (Attachment C). This improvement in our returns is due primarily to the
changes made in our short term cash management in November of 2022. We will continue
to manage our short term cash in this manner, while always exploring ways to increase it
even further.

The University Structured Investment Portfolio (SIP) generated favorable returns of 2.49%
for the quarter ended March 31, 2023.

Pool |, primarily comprised of US Treasury securities, continued to deliver consistent
results. These holdings yielded a consistent quarterly return of 1.31% and contributed over
$4.3 million in net interest income.

Pool Ill and Pool IV generated the highest levels of return for the quarter with total returns
of 2.12% and 6.28% respectively. Both pools were driven by unrealized gains on the equity
portfolio with domestic equities increasing by 10.54% and international equities increasing
by 7.45%.

As of March 31, 2023, the University has liquidated the SPIA fund down to a minimum
balance of $19.7 million and has reinvested these funds into Pool I. The balance in Pool |
as of March 31, 2023, is $360.7 million. The SPIA fund continues to be reduced and
redistributed to Pool |, and as of May 9", 2024, the balance in SPIA is $11.3 million.

This item is provided to the Trustees quarterly for information purposes only.

Additional Background

The attached report provides an update on the university’s investment portfolio for the quarter

ended March 31, 2024 (Attachment A).

As of March 31, 2024, the university had the following cash and investment balances:

Bank of America operating account $ 2,110,200
State of Florida Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) 19,712,600
Bank of New York Structured Investment Portfolio 735,047,200
Total Cash and Investments $ 756,870,000

The structured investment portfolio achieved quarterly gains net of fees totaling $17,331,059 which
includes $10,567,316 in market appreciation and $6,763,743 in interest and dividend income.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA



Rationale

This agenda item is intended to support the Committee’s review and assessment of the
University's investment portfolio as outlined in the Budget and Finance Committee Charter.

Implementation Plan
N/A

Resource Considerations
N/A

Conclusion

This agenda item is intended to provide Trustees with an overview of the University’s investment
portfolio on a quarterly basis.

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL FLORIDA 3



Attachment A

University of Central Florida

Board Summary Report
Investment Performance Review

Period Ending March 31, 2024 oy

MARINER



Asset Allocation and Performance
Total Managed Pool
As of March 31, 2024

Asset Allocation and Performance

Allocation Performance(%)
Market Inception
Value % QTR FYTD 1YR 3YR 5YR Inception p
$ Date
Total Fund (Net) 735,047,200 100.00 2.49 6.64 8.55 2.25 4.77 4.33 04/01/2010
SPIA (Net) 0.73 2.08 2.66 1.78 212 1.87
Total Fund (Gross) 735,047,200 100.00 2.49 6.67 8.61 2.29 4.83 4.41 04/01/2010
Pool | 360,716,194 49.07 1.31 4.00 5.28 N/A N/A 5.12 01/01/2023
FTSE 3 Month T-Bill 1.37 4.21 5.52 2.70 2.07 5.33
Pool Il 57,796,357 7.86 1.11 4.33 5.12 2.06 2.12 1.25 04/01/2010
Pool Il Policy 0.94 3.91 4.54 1.72 1.75 1.01
Pool Il 164,870,854 22.43 2.12 6.65 7.79 2.01 3.69 3.70 04/01/2010
Pool Ill Policy 1.64 5.93 6.67 1.44 3.31 3.38
Pool IV 151,663,795 20.63 6.28 12.62 17.55 5.27 9.10 8.61 04/01/2010
Pool IV Policy 6.08 12.73 18.12 5.47 8.87 8.62

Page 1



Comparative Performance

Pool |
As of March 31, 2024

Comparative Performance Trailing Returns

QTR FYTD 1YR 3YR 5YR Inception '”Cspt'on
ate
Pool | 1.31 (14) 4.00 (20) 5.28 (17) N/A N/A 5.12 (15) 01/01/2023
FTSE 3 Month T-Bill 1.37 (1) 421 (1) 5,52 (1) 2.70 (8) 2.07 (6) 533 (1)
IM U.S. Taxable Money Market (MF) Median 1.27 3.89 5.11 2.49 1.83 4.94
Fidelity MM (Pool 1) 1.31 (16) 3.99 (23) 5.26 (22) N/A N/A N/A 04/01/2010
FTSE 3 Month T-Bill 1.37 (1) 421 (1) 552 (1) 2.70 (8) 2.07 (6) 1.01 (9)
IM U.S. Taxable Money Market (MF) Median 1.27 3.89 5.11 2.49 1.83 0.85
Invesco MM (Pool I) 1.31 (13) 4.01 (17) 5.29 (16) N/A N/A 5.14 (13) 01/01/2023
FTSE 3 Month T-Bill 1.37 (1) 421 (1) 5,52 (1) 2.70 (8) 2.07 (6) 5.33 (1)
IM U.S. Taxable Money Market (MF) Median 1.27 3.89 5.11 2.49 1.83 4.94

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized.
Returns are expressed as percentages.

Page 2



Comparative Performance
Pool Il
As of March 31, 2024

Comparative Performance Trailing Returns

QTR FYTD 1YR 3YR 5YR Inception '”Cgpt'on
ate

Pool Il 111 (79) 4.33 (59) 5.12 (84) 2.06 (81) 212 (71) 1.25 (75) 04/01/2010
Pool Il Policy 0.94 (99) 3.91 (100) 4.54 (100) 172 (95) 1.75 (99) 1.01 (99)

IM U.S. Cash Fixed Income (SA+CF) Median 1.35 4.40 5.59 2.66 2.24 1.44

Galliard (Pool I1) 111 (79) 433 (59) 5.12 (84) 2.06 (81) 212 (71) 1.25 (75) 04/01/2010
Pool Il Policy 0.94 (99) 3.91 (100) 4.54 (100) 1.72  (95) 1.75 (99) 1.01 (99)

IM U.S. Cash Fixed Income (SA+CF) Median 1.35 4.40 5.59 2.66 2.24 1.44

Pool Il Policy: 75% BofA ML 1 Yr US Treasury Note, 25% 90 Day U.S. T-Bill

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized.
Returns are expressed as percentages.

Page 3



Comparative Performance
Pool 11l
As of March 31, 2024

Comparative Performance Trailing Returns

QTR FYTD 1YR 3YR 5YR Inception '”Cspt'on
ate
Pool Il (Net) 2.12 6.60 7.69 1.95 3.62 3.61 04/01/2010
Pool 1l Policy 1.64 5.93 6.67 1.44 3.31 3.38
Pool Il (Gross) 2.12 6.65 7.79 2.01 3.69 3.70 04/01/2010
Pool Il Policy 1.64 5.93 6.67 1.44 3.31 3.38
Pool Il - Domestic Equity 10.54 (34) 19.41 (40) 29.84 (30) 11.45 (21) 15.02 (24) 13.08 (42) 04/01/2010
Pool lll Equity Policy 10.56 (34) 19.44 (39) 29.88 (29) 11.49 (20) 15.05 (23) 13.64 (28)
IM U.S. Equity (SA+CF+MF) Median 9.02 17.80 23.87 8.21 12.25 12.64
Pool Il - Fixed Income 0.45 (83) 422 (68) 3.94 (77) 0.03 (92) 1.50 (85) 1.87 (53) 04/01/2010
ICE BOfAML 1-5 Year AAA-A U.S. Corp. & Gov. Index 0.11 (99) 3.60 (98) 2.87 (99) -0.44 (100) 1.12 (100) 1.51 (83)
IM U.S. Short Duration Fixed Income (SA+CF) Median 0.75 4.44 4.44 0.86 1.90 1.88

Pool Il Policy: 15% S&P500, 85% BofA ML 1-5 Yr Gov/Credit Rated A and Above; Pool Il Domestic Equity Policy: 100% S&P500
Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized.
Returns are expressed as percentages.

Page 4



Comparative Performance

Pool Il
As of March 31, 2024

QTR FYTD 1YR 3YR 5YR Inception '”Cgp“on
ate
Domestic Equity
Vanguard Instl (Pool 111) 10.54 (9) 19.41 (15) 29.84 (16) 11.45 (9) 15.02 (9) 13.75 (3) 07/01/2013
S&P 500 Index 10.56 (1) 19.44 (4) 29.88 (4) 11.49 (1) 15.05 (3) 13.78 (1)
IM S&P 500 Index (MF) Median 10.47 19.20 29.53 11.16 14.71 13.38
Fixed Income
Galliard (Pool Il) 0.64 (69) 461 (39) 4.47 (49) 011 (91) 1.63 (76) 1.97 (42) 04/01/2010
ICE BofAML 1-5 Year AAA-A U.S. Corp. & Gov. Index 0.11 (99) 3.60 (98) 2.87 (99) -0.44 (100) 1.12 (100) 1.51 (83)
IM U.S. Short Duration Fixed Income (SA+CF) Median 0.75 4.44 4.44 0.86 1.90 1.88
Sawgrass (Pool I1I) 0.19 (97) 3.70 (96) 3.24 (98) -0.10 (95) 1.32 (94) 1.73 (62) 04/01/2010
ICE BofAML 1-5 Year AAA-A U.S. Corp. & Gov. Index 0.11 (99) 3.60 (98) 2.87 (99) -0.44 (100) 1.12 (100) 151 (83)
IM U.S. Short Duration Fixed Income (SA+CF) Median 0.75 4.44 4.44 0.86 1.90 1.88

Pool Il Policy: 15% S&P500, 85% BofA ML 1-5 Yr Gov/Credit Rated A and Above; Pool Il Domestic Equity Policy: 100% S&P500

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized.
Returns are expressed as percentages.

Page 5



Comparative Performance
Pool IV
As of March 31, 2024

Comparative Performance Trailing Returns

OTR FYTD 1YR 3YR 5YR Inception '”CDePt'o"
ate

Pool IV (Net) 6.28 12.57 17.45 5.23 9.05 8.49 04/01/2010
Pool IV Policy 6.08 12.73 18.12 5.47 8.87 8.62

Pool IV (Gross) 6.28 12.62 17.55 5.27 9.10 8.61 04/01/2010
Pool IV Policy 6.08 12.73 18.12 5.47 8.87 8.62

Pool IV - Total Equity 10.10 18.16 27.24 9.19 13.44 11.59 04/01/2010
Pool IV Equity Policy 9.68 18.14 27.38 9.67 13.24 11.79

Pool IV - Domestic Equity 10.54 (34) 19.41 (40) 29.84 (30) 11.45 (21) 15.02 (24) 13.12 (42) 04/01/2010
Pool IV Domestic Equity Policy 10.56 (34) 19.44 (39) 29.88 (29) 11.49 (20) 15.05 (23) 13.64 (28)
IM U.S. Equity (SA+CF+MF) Median 9.02 17.80 23.87 8.21 12.25 12.64

Pool IV - International Equity 7.45 (14) 11.11 (32) 13.49 (40) -0.15 (57) 6.91 (34) 5.74 (35) 04/01/2010
MSCI AC World ex USA 481 (43) 10.87 (35) 13.83 (37) 2.44 (38) 6.48 (41) 5.33 (49)
IM International Equity (MF) Median 4.40 9.21 11.98 1.03 5.87 5.27

Pool IV - Fixed Income -0.02 (55) 3.78 (42) 3.33 (39) -1.68 (87) 1.28 (37) 298 (9) 04/01/2010
Pool IV Fixed Income Policy -0.42 (90) 3.08 (81) 2.30 (81) -2.45 (95) 0.37 (94) 2.27 (45)
IM U.S. Intermediate Duration (SA+CF) Median 0.04 3.63 2.94 -0.97 1.16 2.23

Pool IV Policy: Prior to 7/1/2015: 30% BC Agg, 5% BC TIPS, 50% S&P500, 15% MSCI ACWxUS; 7/1/2015 to 11/30/2022: 50% S&P500,15% MSCI ACWxUS, 35% BC Agg
; 12/1/2022 to 12/31/2022: 55% S&P500, 10% MSCI ACWxUS, 35%BC Agg; 1/1/2023 to present: 55% S&P500, 10% MSCI ACWxUS, 35%BC Int Agg

Pool IV Equity Policy:Prior to 12/1/2022: 77% S&P500, 23% MSCI ACWxXUS; 12/1/2022 to present: 85% S&P500, 15%MSCI ACWxUS;

Pool IV Domestic Equity Policy: 100% S&P500

Pool IV Fixed Policy: Prior to 7/1/2015: 86% BC Agg, 14% BC TIPS; 7/1/2015 to 12/31/2022: 100% BC Agg; 1/1/2023 to present: 100% BC Int Agg

Galliard Pool IV Policy: Prior to 1/1/2023: 100% BC Agg; Since 1/1/2023: 100% BC Int Agg

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized and are expressed as percentages.

Page 6



Comparative Performance
Pool IV
As of March 31, 2024

QTR FYTD 1YR 3 YR 5YR Inception '”CDept'O"
ate
Domestic Equity
Vanguard Instl (Pool V) 10.54 (9) 19.41 (15) 29.84 (16) 11.45 (9) 15.02 (9) 13.75 (3) 07/01/2013
S&P 500 Index 10.56 (1) 19.44 (4) 29.88 (4) 11.49 (1) 15.05 (3) 13.78 (1)
IM S&P 500 Index (MF) Median 10.47 19.20 29.53 11.16 14.71 13.38
International Equity
Europacific Growth (Pool V) 7.45 (14) 11.11 (43) 13.49 (52) -0.15 (97) 6.91 (42) 6.28 (13) 04/01/2010
MSCI AC World ex USA 4.81 (58) 10.87 (48) 13.83 (49) 244 (61) 6.48 (51) 5.33 (54)
IM International Multi-Cap Core Equity (MF) Median 5.14 10.71 13.66 3.30 6.53 5.36
Fixed Income
Galliard Intermediate (Pool 1V) -0.02 (55) 3.78 (42) 3.39 (37) -1.79 (91) 1.10 (61) 295 (9) 04/01/2010
Galliard Pool IV Policy -0.42 (90) 3.08 (81) 2.30 (81) -2.45 (95) 0.37 (94) 2.27 (46)
IM U.S. Intermediate Duration (SA+CF) Median 0.04 3.63 2.94 -0.97 1.16 2.23

Pool IV Policy: Prior to 7/1/2015: 30% BC Agg, 5% BC TIPS, 50% S&P500, 15% MSCI ACWxUS; 7/1/2015 to 11/30/2022: 50% S&P500,15% MSCI ACWxUS, 35% BC Agg

; 12/1/2022 to 12/31/2022: 55% S&P500, 10% MSCI ACWxUS, 35%BC Agg; 1/1/2023 to present: 55% S&P500, 10% MSCI ACWxUS, 35%BC Int Agg
Pool IV Equity Policy:Prior to 12/1/2022: 77% S&P500, 23% MSCI ACWxXUS; 12/1/2022 to present: 85% S&P500, 15%MSCI ACWxUS;

Pool IV Domestic Equity Policy: 100% S&P500

Pool IV Fixed Policy: Prior to 7/1/2015: 86% BC Agg, 14% BC TIPS; 7/1/2015 to 12/31/2022: 100% BC Agg; 1/1/2023 to present: 100% BC Int Agg
Galliard Pool IV Policy: Prior to 1/1/2023: 100% BC Agg; Since 1/1/2023: 100% BC Int Agg

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized and are expressed as percentages.

Page 7



Schedule of Investable Assets
Total Managed Pool
Since Inception Ending March 31, 2024

Schedule of Investable Assets

$1,870,700,000

$1,777,900,000

$1,610,597,079

$1,634,000,000

$1,490,100,000

$1,346,200,000

$1,202,300,000

$1,058,400,000

Market Value

$914,500,000

$770,600,000 $735,047,200
IA Aypothetical
$626,700,000 7,880,582
Net Copitributions
$541/,833,558
$482,800,000
$338,900,000
$210,017,484 e — ——
$195,000,000
3/10 12/10 9/11 6/12 3/13 12/13 9/14 6/15 3/16 12/16 9/17 6/18 3/19 12/19 9/20 6/21 3/22 12/22 3/24
= Total Managed Pool = SPIA (Net) S&P 500 Index Net Cash Flow
Schedule of Investable Assets
. . Beginning Net . Ending
Periods Ending Market Value Cash Flow Gain/Loss Market Value Return %
Inception $210,017,481 $331,816,077 $193,213,642 $735,047,200 4.41

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized.
Net cash flows include those associated with management fees, portfolio expenses, and operating withdrawals. Expenses are reduced by commission recapture income received.

A prior period adjustment resulted in a $30 change to the beginning MV.

Page 8



Asset Allocation by Asset Class
Total Managed Pool
As of March 31, 2024

US Mutual Fund Cash

Dec-2023 : $601,213,304

US Equity
$102,663,408
17%

International Equity
$12,913,047
2%

Mar-2024 : $735,047,200

US Equity
$113,489,191
15%

International Equity
$13,875,159
2%

$240,016,04
40%5_\
US Mutual Fund Cash
$360,851,328——
49%
US Fixed Income
$246,831,527
34%
US Fixed Income
$245,620,804
41%
Allocation Allocation
Market Value Allocation Market Value Allocation
:z US Equity 102,663,408 171 :z US Equity 113,489,191 15.4
= International Equity 12,913,047 2.1 = International Equity 13,875,159 1.9
= US Fixed Income 245,620,804 40.9 = US Fixed Income 246,831,527 33.6
US Mutual Fund Cash 240,016,045 39.9 US Mutual Fund Cash 360,851,323 491

Page 9



Asset Allocation by Asset Class
Total Operating Funds
As of March 31, 2024

Dec-2023 : $672,620,084.9

Mar-2024 : $756,870,000.1

Allocation Allocation
Market Value Allocation Market Value Allocation
¢ Equity 115,576,455 17.2 ¢ Equity 127,364,350 16.8
¢ Fixed Income 245,620,804 36.5 ¢ Fixed Income 246,831,527 32.6
Mutual Fund Cash 240,016,045 35.7 Mutual Fund Cash 360,851,323 47.7
¢ Bank of America 21,299,026 3.2 ¢ Bank of America 2,110,200 0.3
¢ SPIA 50,107,755 7.4 ¢ SPIA 19,712,600 2.6

Page 10



Financial Reconciliation
Total Managed Pool
1 Quarter Ending March 31, 2024

Financial Reconciliation Quarter to Date

Market Value Net Contributions Distributions Management Other Income Apprec./ Market Value

01/01/2024 Transfers Fees Expenses Deprec. 03/31/2024
Pool | 239,876,191 - 367,965,628 -250,666,819 - -21,181 4,357,347 -794,972 360,716,194
Fidelity MM (Pool 1) 118,888,738 - 183,518,708 -125,333,409 - -10,591 2,154,725 -794,972 178,423,199
Invesco MM (Pool I) 120,987,453 - 184,446,920 -125,333,409 - -10,591 2,202,622 - 182,292,995
Pool Il 57,164,679 - - - - -3,936 535,673 99,942 57,796,357
Galliard (Pool II)* 57,164,679 - - - - -3,936 535,673 99,942 57,796,357
Pool Il 161,463,663 - - - - -10,391 1,116,717 2,300,865 164,870,854
Pool Il - Fixed 134,755,438 - - - - -8,896 1,020,480 -417,171 135,349,850
Galliard (Pool I1l) 77,361,559 - - - - -5,397 754,737 -261,823 77,849,076
Sawgrass (Pool IlI) 57,393,878 - - - - -3,500 265,743 -155,348 57,500,774
Pool Ill - Dom Equity 26,685,764 - - - - - 95,958 2,718,036 29,499,759
Vanguard Instl (Pool Ill) 26,685,764 - - - - - 95,958 2,718,036 29,499,759
Pool Il - Mutual Fund Cash 22,461 - - - - -1,495 279 - 21,245
Pool IV 142,708,770 - - - - -9,734 798,249 8,166,509 151,663,795
Pool IV - Fixed 53,700,688 - - - - -4,743 523,561 -534,186 53,685,319
Galliard Intermediate (Pool 1V) 53,700,688 - - - - -4,743 523,561 -534,186 53,685,319
Dodge & Cox Income (Pool 1V) - - - - - - - - -
Pool IV - Dom Equity 75,977,644 - - - - - 273,205 7,738,584 83,989,433
Vanguard Instl (Pool IV) 75,977,644 - - - - - 273,205 7,738,584 83,989,433
Pool IV - Int'l Equity 12,913,047 - - - - - - 962,112 13,875,159
Europacific (Pool 1V) 12,913,047 - - - - - - 962,112 13,875,159
Pool IV - Mutual Fund Cash 117,392 - - - - -4,991 1,483 - 113,884
Total Managed Pool 601,213,304 - 367,965,628 -250,666,819 - -45,243 6,807,986 9,772,344 735,047,200

Page 11



Financial Reconciliation
Total Managed Pool
July 1, 2023 To March 31, 2024

Financial Reconciliation Fiscal Year to Date

Market Value Net Contributions Distributions Management Other Income Apprec./ Market Value

07/01/2023 Transfers Fees Expenses Deprec. 03/31/2024
Pool | 200,992,044 - 866,043,942 -717,263,161 - -47,915 11,786,255 -794,972 360,716,194
Fidelity MM (Pool 1) 99,985,031 - 432,056,216 -358,631,581 - -23,957 5,832,462 -794,972 178,423,199
Invesco MM (Pool I) 101,007,013 - 433,987,726 -358,631,581 - -23,957 5,953,793 - 182,292,995
Pool Il 55,447,265 - - - -41,229 -11,867 1,434,457 967,732 57,796,357
Galliard (Pool II)* 55,447,265 - - - -41,229 -11,867 1,434,457 967,732 57,796,357
Pool Il 154,696,142 - - - -75,076 -31,799 3,230,150 7,051,437 164,870,854
Pool Il - Fixed 129,966,511 - - - -75,076 -27,337 2,934,948 2,550,805 135,349,850
Galliard (Pool I1l) 74,486,509 - - - -55,639 -16,718 2,146,706 1,288,217 77,849,076
Sawgrass (Pool IlI) 55,480,002 - - - -19,437 -10,619 788,241 1,262,587 57,500,774
Pool Ill - Dom Equity 24,704,822 - - - - - 294,304 4,500,633 29,499,759
Vanguard Instl (Pool Ill) 24,704,822 - - - - - 294,304 4,500,633 29,499,759
Pool Il - Mutual Fund Cash 24,809 - - - - -4,462 898 - 21,245
Pool IV 134,754,488 - - - -62,511 -30,307 2,544,290 14,457,835 151,663,795
Pool IV - Fixed 51,803,828 - - - -62,511 -14,390 1,497,905 460,488 53,685,319
Galliard Intermediate (Pool 1V) 51,803,828 - - - -62,511 -14,390 1,497,905 460,488 53,685,319
Dodge & Cox Income (Pool 1V) - - - - - - - - -
Pool IV - Dom Equity 70,337,658 - - - - - 837,920 12,813,855 83,989,433
Vanguard Instl (Pool IV) 70,337,658 - - - - - 837,920 12,813,855 83,989,433
Pool IV - Int'l Equity 12,487,851 - - - - - 203,815 1,183,493 13,875,159
Europacific (Pool 1V) 12,487,851 - - - - - 203,815 1,183,493 13,875,159
Pool IV - Mutual Fund Cash 125,151 - - - - -15,917 4,650 - 113,884
Total Managed Pool 545,889,939 - 866,043,942 -717,263,161 -178,816 -121,888 18,995,152 21,682,032 735,047,200

Page 12



Compliance Checklist

Total Fund
As of March 31, 2024

Pool I: Yes No N/A
Investments limited to registered 2a-7 mutual funds, CDARS, and or/SPIA.

Pool II: Yes No N/A
All fixed income investments shall maintain a minimum rating of "A-" or higher by a major credit rating service.

The weighted average quality of the fixed income portfolio shall maintain a rating of "AA+" or higher.

Duration of the fixed income portfolio shall not exceed the effective duration of the Merrill Lynch 1-Year Treasury index by 25%.

The maximum average effective maturity of any single security shall not exceed 3 years.

Operating Pool Il shall maintain a dollar-weighted average effective maturity of 1 year or less.

Pool Il Equity: Yes No N/A
Investments in equity securities shall not exceed twenty-percent (20%) of the market value of Operating Pool IlI's assets.

Pool Il Fixed Income: Yes No N/A
All fixed income investments shall maintain a minimum rating of "A-" or higher by a major credit rating service.*

The weighted average quality of the fixed income portfolio shall maintain a rating of "AA-" or higher.

The duration of the fixed income portfolio shall not exceed the effective duration of the benchmark by 50%.

Operating Pool Il shall maintain a dollar-weighted average effective maturity of 7 years or less.

Pool IV Equity: Yes No N/A
Investment in equity securities shall not exceed seventy-five percent (75%) of the market value of Operating Pool IV's assets.
Foreign securities shall not exceed twenty-percent (20%) of the market value of Operating Pool 1V's assets.

Pool IV Fixed Income: Yes No N/A
All fixed income investments shall maintain a minimum rating of "investment grade" or higher by a major credit rating service.

The weighted average quality of the fixed income portfolio shall maintain a rating of "A-" or higher.

Duration of the fixed income portfolio shall not exceed the effective duration of the benchmark by 50%.

Page 13



University of Central Florida
Fee Analysis
As of March 31, 2024

Estimated Estimated
Annual Fee Mark?;)\/alue Annual Fee Fee Schedule
(%) (%)

Fidelity MM (Pool 1) 0.25 178,423,199 446,058 0.25 % of Assets
Invesco MM (Pool I) 0.21 182,292,995 382,815 0.21 % of Assets
Pool | 0.23 360,716,194 828,873
Galliard 0.10 57,796,357 57,796 0.10 % of Assets
Pool I 0.10 57,796,357 57,796
Galliard 0.10 77,849,076 77,849 0.10 % of Assets
Sawgrass 0.07 57,500,774 40,251 0.07 % of Assets
Pool Il - Fixed Income 0.09 135,349,850 118,100
Vanguard Institutional Index* 0.04 29,499,759 10,325 0.04 % of Assets
Pool Ill - Domestic Equity 0.04 29,499,759 10,325
Mutual Fund Cash* 0.21 21,245 45 0.21 % of Assets
Pool IlI 0.08 164,870,854 128,469
Galliard Intermediate 0.20 53,685,319 107,371 0.20 % of Assets
Pool IV - Fixed Income 0.20 53,685,319 107,371
Vanguard Institutional Index* 0.04 83,989,433 29,396 0.04 % of Assets
Pool IV - Domestic Equity 0.04 83,989,433 29,396
Europacific Growth* 0.46 13,875,159 63,826 0.46 % of Assets
Pool IV - International Equity 0.46 13,875,159 63,826
Mutual Fund Cash* 0.21 113,884 239 0.21 % of Assets
Pool IV 0.13 151,663,795 200,832
Total Managed Pool 0.17 735,047,200 1,215,971

*Audited expense ratio.

**The University of Central Florida pays Bank of New York Mellon a custodial fee of 2.5 basis points annually, billed quarterly on each account's market value.

***The University of Central Florida pays Mariner an all inclusive fee, billed quarterly in arrears, of $110,000 for investment consulting services.

*Fee information on this page is an illustrative estimate of management fees based on current reported portfolio values. Fee estimates do not reflect actual calculation methodologies or applicable carried interest.

Page 14



Report Statistics
Definitions and Descriptions

Active Return - Arithmetic difference between the manager’s performance and the designated benchmark return over a specified time period.

Alpha - A measure of the difference between a portfolio's actual performance and its expected return based on its level of risk as determined by beta. It determines the portfolio's
non-systemic return, or its historical performance not explained by movements of the market.

Beta - A measure of the sensitivity of a portfolio to the movements in the market. It is a measure of the portfolio's systematic risk.

Consistency - The percentage of quarters that a product achieved a rate of return higher than that of its benchmark. Higher consistency indicates the manager has contributed more to the
product’s performance.

Distributed to Paid In (DPI) - The ratio of money distributed to Limited Partners by the fund, relative to contributions. It is calculated by dividing cumulative distributions by paid in capital. This multiple
shows the investor how much money they got back. It is a good measure for evaluating a fund later in its life because there are more distributions to measure against.
Down Market Capture - The ratio of average portfolio performance over the designated benchmark during periods of negative returns. A lower value indicates better product performance
Downside Risk - A measure similar to standard deviation that utilizes only the negative movements of the return series. It is calculated by taking the standard deviation of the negative

quarterly set of returns. A higher factor is indicative of a riskier product.

Excess Return - Arithmetic difference between the manager’s performance and the risk-free return over a specified time period.
Excess Risk - A measure of the standard deviation of a portfolio's performance relative to the risk free return.
Information Ratio - This calculates the value-added contribution of the manager and is derived by dividing the active rate of return of the portfolio by the tracking error. The higher the

Information Ratio, the more the manager has added value to the portfolio.
Public Market Equivalent (PME) - Designs a set of analyses used in the Private Equity Industry to evaluate the performance of a Private Equity Fund against a public benchmark or index.

R-Squared - The percentage of a portfolio's performance that can be explained by the behavior of the appropriate benchmark. A high R-Squared means the portfolio's performance has
historically moved in the same direction as the appropriate benchmark.

Return - Compounded rate of return for the period.

Sharpe Ratio - Represents the excess rate of return over the risk free return divided by the standard deviation of the excess return. The result is an absolute rate of return per unit of risk. A
higher value demonstrates better historical risk-adjusted performance.

Standard Deviation - A statistical measure of the range of a portfolio's performance. It represents the variability of returns around the average return over a specified time period.

Total Value to Paid In (TVPI) - The ratio of the current value of remaining investments within a fund, plus the total value of all distributions to date, relative to the total amount of capital paid into the fund
to date. Itis a good measure of performance before the end of a fund’s life

Tracking Error - This is a measure of the standard deviation of a portfolio's returns in relation to the performance of its designated market benchmark.

Treynor Ratio - Similar to Sharpe ratio but utilizes beta rather than excess risk as determined by standard deviation. It is calculated by taking the excess rate of return above the risk free
rate divided by beta to derive the absolute rate of return per unit of risk. A higher value indicates a product has achieved better historical risk-adjusted performance.

Up Market Capture - The ratio of average portfolio performance over the designated benchmark during periods of positive returns. A higher value indicates better product performance.

Page 15



Disclosures

Mariner Institutional compiled this report for the sole use of the client for which it was prepared. Mariner Institutional is responsible for evaluating the performance results of the Total Fund along with the investment
advisors by comparing their performance with indices and other related peer universe data that is deemed appropriate. Mariner Institutional uses the results from this evaluation to make observations and
recommendations to the client.

Mariner Institutional uses time-weighted calculations which are founded on standards recommended by the CFA Institute. The calculations and values shown are based on information that is received from
custodians. Mariner Institutional analyzes transactions as indicated on the custodian statements and reviews the custodial market values of the portfolio. As a result, this provides Mariner Institutional with a
reasonable basis that the investment information presented is free from material misstatement. This methodology of evaluating and measuring performance provides Mariner Institutional with a practical foundation
for our observations and recommendations. Nothing came to our attention that would cause Mariner Institutional to believe that the information presented is significantly misstated.

This performance report is based on data obtained by the client’s custodian(s), investment fund administrator, or other sources believed to be reliable. While these sources are believed to be reliable, the data
providers are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of their statements. Clients are encouraged to compare the records of their custodian(s) to ensure this report fairly and accurately reflects their various
asset positions.

The strategies listed may not be suitable for all investors. We believe the information provided here is reliable, but do not warrant its accuracy or completeness. Past performance is not an indication of future
performance. Any information contained in this report is for informational purposes only and should not be construed to be an offer to buy or sell any securities, investment consulting, or investment management
services.

Additional information included in this document may contain data provided by index databases, public economic sources, and the managers themselves.
This document may contain data provided by Bloomberg.

This document may contain data provided by Standard and Poor’s. Nothing contained within any document, advertisement or presentation from S&P Indices constitutes an offer of services in jurisdictions where
S&P Indices does not have the necessary licenses. All information provided by S&P Indices is impersonal and is not tailored to the needs of any person, entity or group of persons. Any returns or performance
provided within any document is provided for illustrative purposes only and does not demonstrate actual performance. Past performance is not a guarantee of future investment results.

This document may contain data provided by MSCI, Inc. Copyright MSCI, 2017. Unpublished. All Rights Reserved. This information may only be used for your internal use, may not be reproduced or
disseminated in any form and may not be used to create any financial instruments or products or any indices. This information is provided on an “as is” basis and the user of this information assumes the entire risk
of any use it may make or permit to be made of this information. Neither MSCI, any of its affiliates or any other person involved in or related to compiling, computing or creating this information makes any express
or implied warranties or representations with respect to such information or the results to be obtained by the use thereof, and MSCI, its affiliates and each such other person hereby expressly disclaim all warranties
(including, without limitation, all warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, timeliness, non-infringement, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose) with respect to this information. Without limiting
any of the foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, any of its affiliates or any other person involved in or related to compiling, computing or creating this information have any liability for any direct, indirect, special,
incidental, punitive, consequential or any other damages (including, without limitation, lost profits) even if notified of, or if it might otherwise have anticipated, the possibility of such damages.

This document may contain data provided by Russell Investment Group. Russell Investment Group is the source owner of the data contained or reflected in this material and all trademarks and copyrights related
thereto. The material may contain confidential information and unauthorized use, disclosure, copying, dissemination or redistribution is strictly prohibited. This is a user presentation of the data. Russell Investment
Group is not responsible for the formatting or configuration of this material or for any inaccuracy in presentation thereof.

This document may contain data provided by Morningstar. All rights reserved. Use of this content requires expert knowledge. It is to be used by specialist institutions only. The information contained herein: (1) is
proprietary to Morningstar and/or its content providers; (2) may not be copied, adapted or distributed; and (3) is not warranted to be accurate, complete or timely. Neither Morningstar nor its content providers are
responsible for any damages or losses arising from any use of this information, except where such damages or losses cannot be limited or excluded by law in your jurisdiction. Past financial performance is not
guarantee of future results.

*IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE INFORMATION RE GREENWICH QUALITY LEADER AWARD

These ratings are not indicative of Mariner Institutional’s future performance. These awards or any other rankings and/or recognition by unaffiliated rating services and/or publications should not be construed as a
guarantee that a client will experience a certain level of results or satisfaction if they invest with Mariner Institutional, nor should it be construed as a current or past endorsement by any of our clients. Mariner
Institutional did not pay a fee to participate in this award survey.

Methodology for this Award: For the 2022 Greenwich Quality Award for Overall U.S. Investment Consulting — Midsize Consultants — Between February and November 2022, Coalition Greenwich conducted
interviews with 727 individuals from 590 of the largest tax-exempt funds in the United States. These U.S.-based institutional investors are corporate and union funds, public funds, and endowment and foundation
funds, with either pension or investment pool assets greater than $150 million. Study participants were asked to provide quantitative and qualitative evaluations of their asset management and investment consulting
providers, including qualitative assessments of those firms soliciting their business and detailed information on important market trends.

Page 16



MARINER

Access to a wealth of knowledge and solutions.



	A_Academic Health
	B_Athletics
	D_Finance
	E_Foundation
	F_RFD
	BUDC-2~1.XLS.pdf
	F_RFD

	G_Stadium
	H_CFCPO



